
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, July 18, 2023 9:00 a.m.  Grande Cache Public Service 
         Building 

         Grande Cache Alberta  

#1 CALL TO ORDER 

#2 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

#3 MINUTES 3.1 Committee of the Whole Meeting minutes held June 20, 
2023 

3 

3.2 Business Arising from the Minutes 

#4 DELEGATION 
    10:00 a.m.             Art Gallery of Grande Prairie 

#5 NEW BUSINESS 

5.1 Business Licensing 

5.2 Council vs Admin Policies  

5.3 Schedule of Fees Discussion 

5.4 Township Road 702 Oxbow 

5.5 Construction & Engineering Business Plan 

5.6 Facility Maintenance Business Plan 

5.7 Action List 

#6 CLOSED SESSION 

#7 ADJOURNMENT 

4.1



Minutes of a 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
Public Service Building 

Grovedale, AB on Tuesday, June 20, 2023 

# 1: 
CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Tom Burton called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

PRESENT Ward 1 
Ward 2 
Ward 3 
Ward 4 
Ward 5 
Ward 6 
Ward 7 
Ward 8 
Ward 9 

  Councillor Winston Delorme (virtual) 
 Councillor Ryan Ratzlaff 

Councillor Sally Rosson 
Councillor Dave Berry 
Councillor Dale Smith 

         Councillor Tom Burton 
         Councillor Jennifer Scott 

Councillor Christine Schlief 
Councillor Duane Didow 

ATTENDING Chief Administrative Officer 
Director Community Services 
Director Infrastructure & Engineering 
Director Planning & Economic Development 
Director, Corporate Services 
Recording Secretary 
Manager, Communications & Marketing 
Legislative Services Officer 

        Stacey Wabick 
Michelle Honeyman 

Roger Autio 
Martino Verhaeghe 

Ed Kaemingh 
Wendy Holscher 

Stacey Sevilla 
Sarah Sebo 

ABSENT  Ward 9          Reeve Tyler Olsen 
Ward 8   Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 

#2:  
AGENDA 

MOTION: 23.06.38 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF 
That the Tuesday, June 20, 2023, Committee of the Whole Agenda be 
adopted as amended. 

- Addition of 6.1 Disclosure harmful to 3rd party
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme 

  CARRIED 

2



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         June 20, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 2 

 
#3.1 
COMMITTEE OF THE 
WHOLE MINUTES 
 

MOTION: 23.06.39 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW 
That the Minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held on Tuesday, 
April 18, 2023, be adopted as presented.  
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 
 
 
#3.2 
BUSINESS ARISING  

Councillor Dale Smith: Rural Renew Stream – is the program running? 
Director Martino Verhaeghe: Active since May 29, website and email for 
applicants to apply. 
 

#4 
DELEGATIONS 

4.0 DELEGATIONS 
 

 4.1 VALLEYVIEW AG. SOCIETY DELEGATION 
VV AG. SOCIETY MOTION: 23.06.40 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY 

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Valleyview 
Ag. Society for information, as presented. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 4.2 STOLEN HARVEST MEADERY DELEGATION 
STOLEN HARVEST 
MEADERY  

MOTION: 23.06.41 Moved by: COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE SCHLIEF 
That Committee of the Whole accepts the presentation from the Stolen 
Harvest Meadery for information, as presented. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 4.3 SANDY BAY OWNERS ASSOCIATION DELEGATION 
SANDY BAY MOTION: 23.06.42 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Sandy Bay 
Owners Association for information, as presented. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 
 

3



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         June 20, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 3 

 
 Chair Tom Burton recessed the meeting at 10:14 a.m. 

Chair Tom Burton reconvened the meeting at 10:26 a.m. 
 

 4.4 GRANDE CACHE COMMUNITY EVENTS FOUNDATION – MID YEAR 
REPORT 

GC COMMUNITY 
EVENTS 

MOTION: 23.06.43 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW 
That Committee of the Whole accepts the presentation of the mid-year 
report and financials from the Grande Cache Community Events Foundation 
for information, as presented. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Olsen entered the meeting at 10:45 a.m. 
Councillor Delorme exit the meeting at 10:50 a.m. 
 

 4.5 GRANDE CACHE COMMUNITY EVENTS FOUNDATION – DEATH FEST 
REQUEST 

GC COMMUNITY 
EVENTS 

MOTION: 23.06.44 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW 
That Committee of the Whole accepts the presentation from the Grande 
Cache Community Events Foundation for information, as presented. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Reeve Olsen 
ABSENT: Councillor Delorme 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

#5 NEW BUSINESS 5.0 NEW BUSINESS 
 5.1 FIREMAN’S PIT OVERVIEW 
FIREMAN PIT 
OVERVIEW 

MOTION: 23.06.45 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF 
That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation on the current status 
of Fireman’s Pit, located south of Grande Cache at E-28-56-8-W6M, for 
information, as presented. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Reeve Olsen 
ABSENT: Councillor Delorme 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Olsen exit the meeting at 11:29 a.m. 
 

4



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         June 20, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 4 

 
 5.2 RIDGEVALLEY STREETLIGHTS 
RIDGEVALLEY 
STREETLIGHTS 

MOTION: 23.06.46 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT 
That Committee of the Whole accept the Ridgevalley Streetlights report, for 
information, as presented. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff 
ABSENT: Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 MOTION: 23.06.47 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT 
That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to direct 
Administration to investigate the feasibility and cost of upgrading the street 
lighting along main street (RR262) and the Ridgevalley arena.  
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff 
ABSENT: Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 MOTION: 23.06.48 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT 
That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to direct 
Administration to prepare a report on the street lighting locations within 
Greenview Hamlets. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry 
AGAINST: Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Dale Smith 
ABSENT: Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 Chair Tom Burton recessed the meeting at 12:01 p.m. 
Chair Tom Burton reconvened the meeting at 1:00 p.m. 
Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, and Councillor Delorme entered the 
meeting at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         June 20, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 5 

 
 5.3 WEED INSPECTION PROCESS 
WEED INSPECTION MOTION: 23.06.49 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON 

That Committee of the Whole accepts the Weed Inspection Process 
presentation for information, as presented. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 5.4 EXPRESSION OF INTEREST TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 
EOI DISCUSSION MOTION: 23.06.50 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF 

That Committee of the Whole accept the discussion regarding Greenview’s 
Expression of Interest (EOI) and short-term contract hiring for information, 
as presented. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 Deputy Reeve Smith exit the meeting at 2:03 p.m.  
Deputy Reeve Smith re-entered the meeting at 2:10 p.m. 
Councillor Delorme exit the meeting at 2:10 p.m. 
 

 MOTION: 23.06.51 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to choose option 3 of 
the Expression of Interest cost-saving measures; 
1) Combined pricing and equipment hiring of contractors 
2) The ability for Administration to utilize a single contractor for smaller 
projects 
3) Tendering Forestry Trunk Road water truck services 
4) Tendering Forestry Trunk Road dozer services for snow drifts 
5) Requesting annual quotes from contractors in lieu of using Alberta Road 
Builders Association rates. 
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve 
Olsen 
AGAINST: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott 
ABSENT: Councillor Delorme 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 

 Councillor Delorme rejoined the meeting at 2:50 p.m. 
 
 

6



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         June 20, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 6 

 
 5.5 2023 SPRING COMMUNITY GRANT REQUESTS 
COMMUNITY GRANTS MOTION: 23.06.52 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT 

That Committee of the Whole recommends that Council award the 
approved 2023 Spring Community Grants, as amended. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 Chair Tom Burton recessed the meeting at 3:10 p.m. 
Chair Tom Burton reconvened the meeting at 3:20 p.m. 
 

 5.6 RECOVERY ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
 MOTION: 23.06.53 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON 

The Committee of the Whole accept the Sturgeon Lake and Little 
Puskwaskau Wildfire discussion for information, as presented.  
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 MOTION: 23.06.54 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to direct 
Administration to prepare a report with cost estimates to accommodate; 

- Coordinating of Surveying of lots 
- Waive Greenview required development permits 
- Coordinating of waste removal bins 
- Review covering tipping fees at Greenview Regional Waste 
- Coordinating of tree removal 
- Provide clarity on tax reassessment 
-  

For the purpose of potentially providing these services to Greenview 
residents who have experienced building loss due to 2023 wildfires. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 

7



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         June 20, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 7 

 
 5.7 ACTION LIST 
Action list MOTION: 23.06.55 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY 

That Committee of the Whole accepts the Action List for information, as 
presented. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 6.0 CLOSED SESSION 
 MOTION: 23.06.56 Moved by: COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE SCHLIEF 

That the meeting go to Closed Session, at 4:32 p.m. pursuant to Section 197 
of the Municipal Government Act, 2000, Chapter M-26 and amendments 
thereto, and Division 2 of Part 1 of the Freedom of Information and 
Protection Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, Chapter F-25 and 
amendments thereto, to discuss Privileged Information with regards to the 
Closed Session. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 MOTION: 23.06.57 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 
That, in compliance with Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act, 
this meeting come into Open Session at 5:07 p.m. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 7.0 ADJOURNMENT 
ADJOURNMENT  MOTION: 23.06.58 Moved by: REEVE TYLER OLSEN 

That this Committee of the Whole meeting adjourn at 5:08 p.m. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 
 
 
    Recording Secretary                                                                                                            Chair 

8



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         June 20, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________                                                                               ______________________ 
 

 

9



 REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
 

21.01.22   

 
SUBJECT: Art Gallery of Grande Prairie Presentation 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: July 18, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER:  
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY SERVICES DIR: MH PRESENTER: LL/LD 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: SS   

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation on the Art Gallery of Grande Prairie’s 
2022-2023 Operational Report, for information, as presented.  
 
BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
The Art Gallery of Grande Prairie is a non-profit organization and is one of the largest galleries in Western 
Canada that offers free admission.  The Art Gallery is located within the Montrose Cultural Centre and shares 
the community spaces with The Grande Prairie Public Library and Teresa Sargent Hall.  
 
The organization is governed by a volunteer board of directors who monitor the gallery’s finances and its 
operations, whose mission is to enrich the community through creation, conservation, and sharing of art. 
 
The Art Gallery of Grande Prairie will be presenting the 2022-2023 Operational Report. 
  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of the recommended motion is that the Committee of the Whole will be informed and 
updated on the operations of the Art Gallery of Grande Prairie.  
 

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative not to accept the presentation for information. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 

10



 
 

 

There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
N/A  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Art Gallery of Grande Prairie’s 2022-2023 Operational Report 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



 REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
 

21.01.22   

 
SUBJECT: Business Licensing Bylaw Options 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: July 18, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER: LG 
DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & EC. DEVELOPMENT  DIR: MAV PRESENTER: KT 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Governance LEG: SS   

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial - Municipal Government Act (MGA), RSA 2000 
 
Council Bylaw/Policy - Bylaw 00-324 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accepts the Business License options for information, as presented. 
 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council that they deliberate Option two (2), a 
Business License Bylaw addressing Hawkers, Peddlers and Mobile Vendors with mandatory licensing within 
the Hamlet’s of Greenview, at a Regular Council Meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
 
Business licensing is a prevalent and advantageous practice in most municipalities in Alberta. However, the 
Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 (Greenview) does not require business licenses to operate within its 
jurisdiction. The Town of Grande Cache had a mandatory Business Licensing program in the past that 
facilitated tracking, advertising, and support for local businesses by providing a platform for disseminating 
information to them. When the Hamlet of Grande Cache joined Greenview, Business Licensing became 
completely voluntary. After several years, this has led to a need for more knowledge at the administrative 
level regarding the businesses operating or requiring support from the Economic Development department. 
 
During a repealing bylaw for an out-of-date Hawkers and Peddlers Bylaw, the following motion was moved: 
 
MOTION: 22.09.578 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON 
That Council direct Administration to review licensing Bylaw 00-324 and include a provision for hawkers and 
peddlers for the purpose of Council discussion and further direction. 
 
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, 
Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
                                                                                                                           CARRIED 
 

36



 
 

 

As Hawkers and Peddlers regulation can only effectively function with being mandatory, a complete review 
of the Business Licensing Bylaw options available to Greenview has been undertaken, and several options 
exist for consideration. 
 
A business license has numerous and varied advantages, allowing Greenview to support its business sector 
by: 
 

1. Collecting information to determine the most appropriate standards that would qualify businesses for 
small business tax incentives, should they be created; 

2. Maintaining a comprehensive Business Directory for Greenview businesses that can be used by 
ratepayers, tourists, and regional customers and promoted on our website and other media; 

3. Updating local businesses directly on bid opportunities for municipal work, up-to-date information 
from provincial and federal governments, as well as grant opportunities, contract opportunities, 
bidding opportunities or incentive programs; and 

4. Promoting opportunities on various platforms, including the Canadian International Trade 
Commissioner List, the GIG Business Vendor Directory, and regional business mapping. 

 
Administration is providing three (3) bylaw options to the Committee of the Whole to address the licensing 
of businesses: 
 
Option 1  requires a Business License within all of Greenview; 
 
Option 2  requires a Business License within all of Greenview’s Hamlets, where it is believed the majority 

of small businesses are located; or 
 
Option 3 where there are no changes to the Business Licensing requirements except for Mobile Vendors, 

Hawkers and Peddlers 
 
A detailed explanation of each of these options and draft bylaws were provided at the April 18th, 2023, 
Committee of the Whole in Grande Cache. 
 
At April 25, 2023, Regular Council meeting, it was confirmed that a Business License does not increase taxes, 
as assessments are based on the activities undertaken on a property and the value of that property, not the 
licensing of the business. Development Permits are a separate process and are regulated under a different 
bylaw unrelated to Business Licensing. 
 
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of Committee of the Whole accepting the recommended action is Administration will have 
a direction that aligns with Council’s expectations for business licensing when presenting the new 
Business Licence, Hawkers, Peddlers and Mobile Vendors bylaw at an upcoming regular council 
meeting. This will allow a more focused discussion by Council. 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages of the recommended action.  

37



 
 

 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to recommend Council deliberate option one (1) 
to allow for the regulation of Business Licenses in Greenview. However, this is not recommended as this may 
be perceived as a barrier to home-based and agricultural businesses, which historically have never required 
a permit within Greenview. 
 
Alternative #2: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to recommend Council deliberate option three 
(3) to allow for the regulation of Hawkers, Peddlers and Mobile Vendors. This is not recommended as the 
Hawker, Peddler, Mobile Vendor Licensing Bylaw only regulates these uses and needs to address the needed 
current Business License Bylaw updates. The current business license bylaw is 23 years old. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
N/A 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will prepare a bylaw to present to Council in June of 2023. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Bylaw Revisions Overview 

38



May 16, 2023 

Business License Op�ons 

Summary of changes from the Commitee of the Whole – April 18, 2023 

Business Licenses Mandatory in Greenview (Op�on 1) and in Hamlets (Op�on 2): 

1. Exemp�ons 
a. removed “Charitable or non-profit organizations, recreational societies, etc.”; and 
b. added Section 4.2, “This section does not apply to Special Events, which would require a 

Business License for the Organizer listing all the associated vendors or exhibitors 
participating in the event.” 
 

2. Procedure for Issuance of License 
a. added 5.2 B “Greenview reserves the right to refuse any application for a Business 

License at its sole discretion.” 
 

3. Hawkers, Peddlers, & Mobile Vendors 
a. revised 6.11 proof of insurance from five million dollars ($5,000,000) to two million 

dollars ($2,000,000).  
 

4. Special Provisions 
a. revised 7.2 A to include “temporary businesses may apply in the same manner as stated 

in Section 5.1.”;  
b. added 7.2 B “No persons shall operate, maintain, conduct, or advertise a special event in 

Greenview unless they have first obtained a Development Permit to operate or conduct 
such an event, and have attended a pre-application meeting with Greenview’s Planning 
and Development department”; 

c. added 7.2 C “Applications for a Temporary Business License to conduct a special event 
shall be decided upon by the provisions of the Special Events Licensing Bylaw, should one 
exist”; and 

d. added 7.3 “Greenview reserves the right to refuse any application for a Temporary 
Business License at its sole discretion.” 

Hawkers, Peddlers, & Mobile Vendors (Op�on 3): 

1. General Provisions  
a. added 3.12 “Greenview reserves the right to refuse any application for a Hawker, 

Peddler, Mobile Vendor License at its sole discretion.” 
 

2. Condi�ons and Regula�ons 
a. revised 4.9 proof of insurance from five million dollars ($5,000,000) to two million dollars 

($2,000,000). 
b. added 4.15 “Mobile Vendors shall ensure the event in which they are attending has 

obtained a valid license under the Special Events Licensing Bylaw, should one exist, and a 
Temporary Business License from Greenview.” 

39



 REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
 

21.01.22   

 
SUBJECT: Council vs Admin Policies  
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: July 18, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER:  
DEPARTMENT: CORPORATE SERVICES DIR: EK PRESENTER: SS 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Governance LEG: SS   

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation on policies for information, as presented. 
 
BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
 
Presently, Greenview divides its policies into two groups, Council and Administrative.  
 
What is a Council policy? 
 
A Council policy at Greenview is defined as “a policy that focuses on Greenview residents, business or the 
public and their relation to Greenview facilities or the standards Council sets for themselves. These policies: 

- Outline services and/or programs performed by Greenview; 
- Relate to areas of governance; 
- Provide strategic direction; and  
- Generally, impact Greenview as a whole.” 

 
Council approves these policies. Through these policies, Council exercises their governance powers to set 
discretionary duties or standards of performance for Greenview or for yourselves.   
 
The characteristics of a Council policy include the following: 

- Externally facing but may have applicability either externally or internally.  
- Approved by Council via a single motion or resolution made during a Council meeting.  
- Advises Administration on what Council expects for the strategic direction. 
- Advises the public on the service that residents can expect from Greenview 
- Debated in an open Policy Review Committee and Council meeting where amendments may be 

directed 
- Requires Administration to present to Council via a Request for Decision for the creation of any 

recommended amendments or repeal. 

40



 
 

 

- Broadly impacts a large portion of residents or businesses or has more wide-reaching ramifications. 
- May direct or commit Greenview resources to accomplish the Council Policy’s purpose or intent. 
- Available on Greenview’s public website. 
- Maintained by Legislative Services; a master index is maintained. 
- Master record is the original copy with the Council resolution number of the resolution that approved 

the policy. 
 
What is an Administrative Policy?   
 
An Administrative policy at Greenview is defined as “a policy that focuses on Greenview’s internal operations. 
These policies: 

- Are internal in nature; 
- Deal strictly with administrative matters; 
- Relate directly to the operations of Greenview; and  
- Generally only impact Greenview employees 

 
These policies are approved by the Chief Administrative Officer (CAO). Administrative policies are more 
specific than Council policies and generally focus on the internal workings of Greenview as a corporation, 
addressing and noting the impacts on Greenview employees. Administrative policies are action-oriented 
documents that specify the process and related high-level procedures for the delivery of administrative 
programs and activities. They provide a framework for carrying out organizational decisions. They must work 
within the resources allocated. 
 
The characteristics of Administrative policies are: 

- Internally applicable and internally facing.  
- Approved and signed by the CAO. 
- Not to be used for external users or communicated externally. 
- Have no public component.  
- Must work within the framework of Bylaws and Council policies. 
- Available to staff on the internal SharePoint site. 
- Maintained by Legislative Services; a master index is maintained.  
- Master record is the original signed copy. 

 
These policies can be accessed upon request by anyone.   
 
Although the term Administrative Policy is newer for Greenview, internal policies have existed previously 
under the title of Internal Directive. The direction that Administration is striving to take with Administrative 
policies is to have a Council policy establish the level of service and governance and a complimentary 
Administrative policy directing staff on how to carry out the expectations set by Council. 
 
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of the Committee of the Whole accepting the presentation is to provide additional clarity 
on the differences between Administrative and Council policies at Greenview. 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

41



 
 

 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 
 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1:  The Committee of the Whole has the alternative of not hearing the presentation. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
There are no follow-up actions to the recommended motion. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
N/A 

42



 REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
 

21.01.22   

 
SUBJECT: Schedule of Fees Discussion  
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: July 18, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER:  
DEPARTMENT: CORPORATE SERVICES DIR: EK PRESENTER: SS 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Governance LEG: SS   

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – Municipal Government Act, R.S.A 2000, c.M-26, s.8. 
 
Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – Bylaw 22-930 “Schedule of Fees.” 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accepts the presentation on the Schedule of Fees bylaw for 
information, as presented.  
 
BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
 
At a previous Council meeting, Councillor Dale Smith expressed concerns regarding the complexity, process, 
and size of the Schedule of Fees Bylaw. Administration is bringing a presentation and conversation forward 
to receive direction on how best to move forward with the annual process of Greenview setting the rates and 
fees for the municipality. 
 
After conducting thorough research and consulting with numerous municipalities, Administration 
recommends continuing with the established process.  
 
Firstly, it is worth noting that out of the 20 municipalities we surveyed, a significant majority of 18 had 
adopted all-encompassing bylaws similar to ours. This demonstrates that our approach is aligned with the 
industry standard and is widely recognized as an effective method for managing fees for services and licenses. 
By following the practices of other successful municipalities, we can leverage their experiences and best 
practices to streamline our own processes. 
 
One of the key advantages of having all the rates outlined within the bylaw is the increased ease and efficiency 
it brings to the Finance Department’s ability to prepare the annual budget. With the revenue pre-established, 
both finance and Council can plan and allocate resources effectively. This stability allows for better long-term 
financial planning, making prioritizing projects and investments that benefit our community easier. On the 
other hand, if individual managers are free to set their own rates, the revenue is subject to frequent changes, 
causing uncertainty and hindering the budgeting process. 
 

43



 
 

 

Moreover, retaining all fees within the bylaw ensures that council members have a direct say in setting the 
rates. This level of oversight and involvement is necessary as it allows Council to accurately reflect our 
constituents' needs and aspirations. By maintaining control over the fees, Council can actively shape the 
financial policies of our municipality and ensure that they align with the community's goals and values. 
 
While it is true that our bylaw may be extensive in terms of its length, it is important to consider that many 
other municipalities that own and operate recreation facilities face similar challenges. Their bylaws range in 
length from 37 to 47 pages. Those without recreation facilities are much smaller. Greenview’s is currently 33 
but can be made smaller through formatting and the consolidation of recreation fees.  
 
Most surveyed municipalities bring amendments throughout the year and consolidate them into one 
comprehensive bylaw. This consolidation allows for better organization and clarity, making it easier for both 
staff and the public to understand and navigate the fee structure in a single bylaw. 
 
On the other hand, municipalities are not required under the Municipal Government Act to create bylaws for 
the establishment of rates and fees outside of 8(1)(c)(i) establishing fees for licences, permits or approvals. It 
is simply a practice that has become commonplace across Alberta municipalities. The length of bylaws, what 
they contain, and the process of similar municipalities can be found in the table below. 
 
The Schedule of Fees Bylaw plays a crucial role in ensuring the efficient and effective management of our 
municipality's finances. By aligning our practices with the majority of successful municipalities and 
maintaining control over the fee-setting process, we can better serve our community and contribute to its 
growth and prosperity. While some complexities may exist, they are manageable and well worth the benefits 
gained through the maintenance of this bylaw. 
 
Table 1. 

Municipality  Encompasses all their fees? Page length  
County of Grande Prairie No. 1 No – recreation fees are set by 

the contracted company that 
operates the facilities. 

15 

City of Grande Prairie Yes 38 
Municipal District of Smoky River 
No. 130 

Yes 12 

Big Lakes County Yes 8 
Lac La Biche County  No – includes snowplow signs 

but not the cost of snowplow 
services. 

29 

Northern Sunrise County  Yes 4 
Birch Hills County  Yes 5 
Parkland County  Yes 37 
Town of Slave Lake  No – only provides corporate 

service fees. 
3 

Brazeau County  Yes 19 
Clear Hills County  Yes 8 

44



 
 

 

Town of Bonnyville  Yes 36 
Saddle Hills County   Yes 7 
Yellowhead County  No – have fees within each 

individual bylaw. 
N/A 

Mackenzie County  Yes  43 
Town of Westlock  Yes 46 
Town of Vulcan  Yes 18 
Town of Gibbons  Yes 6 
Town of Bon Accord  No – fees are split between two 

separate bylaws. 
N/A 

Flagstaff County  Yes  11 
City of Camrose Yes 47  

 
  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of accepting the presentation is that the Committee of the Whole will have a complete 
picture of how other municipalities handle implementing service fees.  

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 
 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1:  Committee of the Whole has the alternative to make an additional motion recommending 
Council direct Administration to limit the fees contained within the Schedule of Fees bylaw. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  

45



 
 

 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
 
Administration will implement any direction provided by the majority of the Committee of the Whole. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Bylaw 22-930 Schedule of Fees 

 
MGA 
8(1) Powers under bylaws 
(i) establishing fees for licences, permits and approvals, including fees for licences, permits and approvals that may be 
in the nature of a reasonable tax for the activity authorized or for the purpose of raising revenue; 

46



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           1   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 
 

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of Alberta for the 
purpose of establishing rates and fees for the provision of goods and services, or on behalf of 

Greenview, as attached to this bylaw as the Schedules of Fees. 
 
Whereas, pursuant to section 7 of the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, Chapter M-26, a 
Council may pass bylaws for municipal purposes respecting the following matters: 

(a) People, activities and things in, on or near a public place or place that is open to the 
public; and  

(b) Services provided by or on behalf of the municipality;  
 
Whereas, pursuant to section 8 of the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, Chapter M-26, a 
Council may pass bylaws for municipal purposes respecting the following matters: 

(a) Provide for a system of licenses, permits or approvals, including any or all of the 
following: 
i. Establishing fees for licenses, permits and approvals, including fees for licenses, 

permits and approvals that may be in the nature of a reasonable tax for the 
activity authorized or for the purpose of raising revenue. 

 
Whereas, The Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled deems it 
expedient to revise the Schedules of Fees for the Municipality; 

Therefore, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled enacts as 
follows: 

1. Title 
1.1 This bylaw may be cited as the “Schedule of Fees Bylaw”. 

 
2. Definitions 

2.1 Greenview means the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16. 
 

3. Application 
3.1 This Bylaw establishes the rates, fees and charges for certain goods and services 

provided by Greenview. 
 

3.2 This Bylaw and the attached Schedules will be reviewed as required and 
amendments to any of the rates and fees must be made by Council bylaw in 
accordance with Section 191(1) of the Municipal Government Act. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

47



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           2   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

3.3 All fees, fines, rates, and penalties provided for in other current bylaws shall 
remain in full force and effect and may be charged in addition to the provisions 
stated in this Bylaw. 
 

4. Rates and fees 
4.1 The rates and fees are established in the attached Schedules ‘A’ through ‘K’ and 

form part of this Bylaw. 
 

5. Severability and Effect 
5.1 If any provision of this Bylaw is declared invalid for any reason by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, all other provisions of this Bylaw shall remain valid and 
enforceable. 
 

5.2 Bylaw 22-900 and any amendments thereto is hereby repealed.  
 

6. This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the day of final passing. 
 

Read a first time this 22nd day of November, 2022.   
 
Read a second time this 13th day of December, 2022. 
 
Read a third time and passed this 10th day of January, 2023 

 
 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        REEVE 
 
 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
 
 
 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

48



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           3   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 
 
 

AGRICULTURAL SERVICES – Schedule A 

**All Agricultural Rental Equipment can be kept for a maximum of three (3) days if there is a 
lineup waiting for that item 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

1. Picnic Tables (per table, per day)    
i. Non-Profit Organizations; Community Event  E No Charge  
ii. Private Affair, Non-Public Event - 10 day max. T $10.00 Per Day 

 
2.  Barbeque    
i. Non-Profit Organizations; Community Event E No Charge  
ii. Private Affair, Non-Public Event - 10 day max. T $100.00 Per Day 

 
3. Weed and Insect Control Equipment     
i. Field Sprayer c/w GPS  T $50.00 Per Day  
ii. Boomless Sprayer Valleyview, Grovedale T $20.00 Per Day  
iii. Water Tank on Trailer (For Spraying), (Valleyview, Grovedale) T $25.00 Per Day  
iv. Estate Sprayer (Pull Type) T $20.00 Per Day  
v. Estate Sprayer (3 pt hitch), (Valleyview) T $20.00 Per Day  
vi. Handheld Sprayer (All locations) T $5.00 Per Day  
vii. Quad Mounted Sprayers T $10.00 Per Day  
viii Backpack Sprayers  T $5.00 Per Day  
ix. Granular Pesticide Bait Applicator (Holds 135 lbs Bran, 

Valleyview)  
T $30.00 Per Day  

 
4. Spreaders    
i. Manure Spreader (Valleyview, Grovedale) T $300.00 Per Day   
ii. Fertilizer Spreader (Valleyview, Grovedale) T $100.00 Per Day   

 
5. Earth Moving and Post Pounding Equipment     
i. 1000 Earth Mover All Locations  T $200.00 Per Day 
ii. 12' Pull-Type Blade (Valleyview, Grovedale) T $50.00 

 
Per Day 

iii. Vee Ditcher, Grovedale T $50.00 Per Day 
iv. Post Pounder (All locations) T $125.00 Per Day 

$65.00 Half Day  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

49



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           4   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

v. Bin Crane (Valleyview, Grovedale) T $100.00 Per Day  
 

6. Cattle Equipment    
i. Cattle Squeeze (All locations) T $25.00 Per Day  
ii. Loading Chute (All locations) T $50.00 Per Day 
iii. Panel Trailer (Valleyview, Grovedale) T $50.00 Per Day 
iv. Spare Panels (free 3 days, $5 each for additional days, DeBolt) T $5.00 Per Day 
v. Tag Reader (Valleyview, Grovedale) T No Charge  

 
7. Conservation Equipment    
i. 50' Heavy Harrow with Granular Applicator (Valleyview) T $250.00 Per Day  
ii. 33' Heavy Harrow with Granular Applicator (Grovedale) 

 
T $200.00 Per Day  

iii. 30' Land Roller (Valleyview, Grovedale) T $200.00 Per Day  
iv. 14' Heavy Disc (Valleyview, Grovedale) T $300.00 Per Day  
v. No-Till Drill (Valleyview) T $200.00 Per Day  
vi. Conservation Seeder- 3 pt hitch (Valleyview) T $100.00 Per Day  
vii. 3 pt hitch 8' Rotary Tiller (Valleyview) T $150.00 Per Day 
viii 3 pt hitch 8' Deep Tillage Cultivator (Valleyview) T $100.00 Per Day 
ix. 3 pt hitch 8' Disk (Valleyview) T $100.00 Per Day  
x. 3 pt hitch 8' Harrow (Valleyview) T $50.00 Per Day 
xi. 3 pt hitch 8' Pull Blade (Valleyview) T $25.00 Per Day 
xii. Grain Bag Roller (Valleyview) T $50.00 Per Day  
xiii. Plastic Mulch Applicator (Valleyview) T $50.00 Per Day  
xiv. Tree Planter (Valleyview) T $50.00 Per Day 

 
8. Broadcast Seeding Equipment     
i. Truck Mount Seeder (Valleyview) T $10.00 Per Day  
ii. Quad Mount Seeder (Valleyview) T $10.00 Per Day 
iii. Hand Seeder (free 3 days, $5 per day after) T $5.00 Per Day 
iv. Broadcast Seeder, 3 pt hitch (Valleyview) T $15.00 Per Day 

 
9. Miscellaneous Equipment    
i. 

Survey Equipment, Valleyview (Theodilite, Transit, Gradient Stick) 
T $10.00 Per Day/ 

Per piece of 
equipment  

ii. Metal Detector, Valleyview T $10.00 Per Day 
iii. Hay Sampler, Soil Sampler (Free first 3 days) T $5.00 Per Day 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

50



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           5   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

iv. Bin Probe, Measuring Wheel (Free first 3 days) T $5.00 Per Day 
v. Scare Cannons (Free first 3 days) T $5.00 Per Day 
vi. Small Animal Traps T  $2.00 Per Day 
vii. Grain Vacuum (Valleyview, Grovedale) (1/2 day rate $75) T $150.00 Per Day 
viii. Bale Wagon (Valleyview, Grovedale) T $250.00 Per Day 
ix. Pressure Washer on Trailer (Valleyview) T $50.00 Per Day 
x. 

Weed Free Forage Twine 
T $25.88 Per Roll 

$51.76 Per Box 
 

10. Water Pumping Equipment     
i. 

Water Pump & Trailer (Grovedale; Valleyview: Apr 2-Oct 31) 
T $250.00 48 Hrs 

$250.00 +24 Hrs 
ii. 

Off Season (Nov 1-April 1) At Managers Discretion 
T $500.00 48 Hrs 

$500.00 +24 Hrs 
 

11. Recovery & Repairs; Rental Equipment Program     
i. Recovery requiring 1 ton minimum for transport T $100.00 Per Hour 
ii. Recovery requiring under 1 ton to transport T $75.00 Per Hour 
iii. Cleaning of Equipment (plus $75 disposal fee) T $60.00 Per Hour 
iv. Repair due to Negligent Use, labour T $60.00 Per Hour 
v. Repair due to Negligent Use, parts T Full Cost  

 
12. Notice of Enforcement & Chemical     
i 

Notice Enforcement, Internal Labour 
T $200.00 Per Hour 

$125.00 Admin Fee 
ii. 

Notice Enforcement, External Labour 
T Full Cost  

+15% Admin Fee 
iii. Notice Enforcement, Chemical (by volume) T Full Cost By package  

iv. Range and Pasture Product (by volume) T Full Cost By package 
v. Rural Acreage Owner Chemical (by volume) T Full Cost By package  

 
13. Haying and Pasture Permits    
i. Application fee  E $100.00 Per Day 
ii. Plus Annual per Acre Charge  E $15.00 Per Day 

 
14. Spray Exemption Signs    
i. Lost or Replacement Signs  E $30.00 Per Sign 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

51



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           6   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

 
15. Shelterbelt Program    
i. Seedling Bundle  T $20.00 10 Seedlings 
ii. Seedling Bundle  T $30.00 15 Seedlings 
iii. 

Landscape Seedlings  
T $7.00 Single 

Seedling 
iv. Specialty Landscape (Singular)  T $12.00 Seedling 
v. 

Plastic Mulch, 1 Roll  
T $225.00 1,500 ft per 

roll 
vi. Hemp Mats and 2 x Wooden Nails T $1.00  

 

FAMILY AND COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES – Schedule B 
 

 Description GST Status* Fee in $ Unit 
1. Home Support 

 
         E $20.00 

maximum 
Per Hour 

2. Life Skills Day Camp          E $40.00 Per 
Course 

3. Babysitting Course (Grande Cache)          E $50.00 Per 
Course 

4. Kids Conference (Grande Cache)          E $50.00 Per 
Course 

 

COMMUNITY SERVICES GENERAL – Schedule C 
 

 Grande Cache Cemetery                                                  
1. Open and Close Fees  May 15 to 

November 
15        

November 
16 to May 
14 

 

i. Full Casket Adult T $600.00 $700.00 Per Casket 

ii. Full Casket Child T $400.00 $500.00 Per Casket 

iii. Cremation T $450.00 $550.00 Per Casket 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

52



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           7   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

iv. Disinterment T Double the cost of 
opening and closing 

Per Disinterment 

 
2. Purchase of Plot T $550.00 Per Plot 

 
3. Columbarium Fees    
i. Niche Price (Includes Opening/Closing Fee) T $1,050.00 Per Niche 

 

 

RECREATION – Schedule D 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

Recreation Grande Cache 
1. Grande Cache Arena Rentals (With Ice)    
i. Adult rate T $170.00 Per hour 
ii. Adult Non-Prime (Before 3:30 p.m. on 

Regular School Days) 
T $110.00 Per hour 

iii. Youth Rate T $88.25 Per hour 
iv. Youth Non-prime (Before 3:30 p.m. on 

Regular School Days) 
T $55.00 Per hour 

v. Public Skating Sponsorship T $150.00 Per hour 
 

2. Arena and Curling Rink Surfaces (No Ice)   
i. Adult Rate  T $80.00 Per hour 
ii. Youth Rate  T $40.00 Per hour 
iii. Maximum Day Rate T $375.00 Per Day 
iv. Maximum Youth Day Rate T $185.00 Per Day 

 
3. Aquatic Centre    
i. Private Rental T $140.00 Per hour 
ii. Lane Pool/ Swim Club T $88.50 Per hour 
iii. Wave Crashers (During Public Swim) T $110.00 Per session no time 
iv. Grande Bash (Private Rental) T $180.00 Per session built in time  
v. Extra Lifeguard T $35.00 Per hour  
vi. Sponsorship T $185.00 Per hour 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

53



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           8   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

4. Locker Rental    
i. Annual (Private Locker) T $100.00 Per Year 
ii. Locker Rental (Grande Cache) T $0.25 Per Use 

 
 Recreation Centre Fees – General 

Admittance 
   

5. Daily Pass    
i. Family T $20.00 Per Pass 
ii. Adult (18+) T $9.00 Per Pass 
iii. Youth (12-17) T $6.50 Per Pass  
iv. Child (3-12) T $5.00 Per Pass 
v. Senior (60-69) T $6.50 Per Pass 
vi. Super Senior (70+)  N/A Free Per Pass 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Pass  

 
6. 10x Punch Pass 

Expiration 2 Years From Date of Purchase 
   

i. Family T $180.00 Per Punch Pass 
ii. Adult (18+ T $81.00 Per Punch Pass 
iii. Youth (5-17) T $58.50 Per Punch Pass 
iv. Child (3-12) T $45.00 Per Punch Pass 
v. Senior (60-69) T $58.50 Per Punch Pass 
vi. Super Senior (70+) N/A Free Per Punch Pass 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Punch Pass  

 
7. Monthly Membership    
i. Family T $110.00 Per Membership 
ii. Adult (18+) T $50.00 Per Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $35.00 Per Membership 
iv. Child (3-12) T $25.00 Per Membership 
v. Senior (60-69) T $35.00 Per Membership 
vi. Super Senior (70+)  N/A Free Per Membership 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Membership 

 
8. 3-Month Membership    
i. Family T $316.00 Per Membership 
ii. Adult (18+) T $145.00 Per Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $100.00 Per Membership 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

54



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           9   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

iv.  Child (3-12) T $72.00 Per Membership 
v. Senior (60-69) T $100.00 Per Membership 
vi. Super Senior (70+) N/A Free Per Membership 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Membership 

 
9. 6-Month Membership    
i. Family T $605.00 Per Membership 
ii. Adult (18+) T $275.00 Per Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $195.00 Per Membership 
iv. Child (3-12) T $140.00 Per Membership 
v. Senior (60-69) T $195.00 Per Membership 
vi. Super Senior (70+)  N/A Free Per Membership 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Membership 

 
10. Annual Membership     
i. Family T $1,100.00 Per Membership 
ii. Adult (18+) T $500.00 Per Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $350.00 Per Membership 
iv. Child (3-12) T $250.00 Per Membership 
v. Senior (60-69) T $350.00 Per Membership 
vi. Super Senior (70+)  N/A Free Per Membership 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Membership 

 
Annual Membership Sale: 15% off 

Does not apply to punch passes or corporate membership. Discount offered on 6 & 12 month memberships only. 
 

Corporate discount applies to a group of 5 or more individuals in the same organization. 
 

Family membership includes two adults 18 years or older and two kids 17 years or younger.  
  
11. Special Events 
i. Toonie Swim T $2.00  

 
 Recreation Centre Fees – Registered Programs  
12. Aquatics     
i. Lifesaving Parent & Tot Swim Lesson   T $55.00 10 – 30min session 
ii. Lifesaving Preschool Swim Lesson   T $55.00 10 – 30min session 
iii. Lifesaving Swimmer Swim Lesson   T $65.00 10 – 45min session 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

55



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           10   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

iv. Lifesaving Adult / Fitness Swimmer Swim 
Lesson   

T  
$85.00 

10 – 45min session 

v. School Swim Lessons T $30.00 10 – 30 min session 
vi. Private Swimming Lessons  T $25.00 Per 30 minutes 
vii. Semi-Private Swimming Lessons (2+ 

participants, hour/participant)  
T $20.00 Per Student, Per hour 

viii. Junior Lifeguard Club (Session Based) T $12.00 Per Session 
ix. Lifesaving Society – Aquatics Emergency 

care / Standard First Aid 
T $140.00 Per Course 

x. Lifesaving Society – Lifesaving Instructor  T $350.00 Per Course 
xi. Lifesaving Society – Lifesaving Instructor 

RECERTIFICATION 
T $80.00 Per Course 

xii. Lifesaving Society – Bronze Star T $120.00 Per Course 
xiii. Lifesaving Society – Bronze Medallion T $160.00 Per Course 
xiv. Lifesaving Society – Bronze Cross T $160.00 Per Course 
xv. Lifesaving Society National Lifeguard T $360.00 Per Course 
xvi. Lifesaving Society National Lifeguard - 

RECERTIFICATION 
T $90.00 Per Course 

xvii. Water Fitness (Session based) T $8.00 Per Session 
xviii. Water Fitness (Drop-in) T $10.00 Per Drop In 

 
13. Child and Youth Programming     

i. Child Programming  T $5.00 Per Session  
ii. Youth Programming  T $5.00 Per Session  

 
14. Fitness Programming      
i. Child Programming  T $5.00 Per Session  
ii. Youth Programming  T $5.00 Per Session  
iii. Adult Programming  T $8.00 Per Session  

 
15. Drop-in Registered Programs     
i. Adult T $8.00 Per Session 
ii. Youth T $5.00 Per Session 
iii. Child T $5.00 Per Session 

 
16. Meeting Rooms and Curling Club Lounge    
i. Rental Rate with Clean-up  T $40.00 Per Hour 
ii. Association Rate/ Not-for-Profit  T $25.00 Per Hour 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

56



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           11   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

 
17. Concession and Merchandise     
i. Beverages, Food, Coffee T Market Value  Per Item 
ii. Aquatic Accessories and Socks T Suggested Retail Value Per Item 
iii. Concession Rental  T $150.00 Per Agreement 

 
18. Equipment Rental    
i. Portable Sound System (Onsite Only) T $120.00 Per Event 
ii. Portable Stage T $180.00 Per Event 
iii. Tables (Included in a Facility Rental)  T $6.50  Per Table 
iv. Chairs (Included in a Facility Rental)  T $3.00  Per Chair 
v. Boom Lift (Includes Operator) Onsite Only T $150.00 Per Hour 
vi. Damage Deposit  T $400.00  

 
19. Grande Cache Community Bus   
 Regular Rental (Not Seniors or Youth)    
i. Daily Private Rental (Encompasses Cost of 

Driver & Expenses) 
T $750.00  

 Senior/Youth/Nonprofit Groups Rate    
ii. Daily Private Rental (encompasses cost of 

driver & expenses) 
T $400.00 Per Day 

iii. Round Trip to Grande Prairie/Hinton E $50.00 Per Person 
iv. One Way Trip to Grande Prairie/Hinton E $35.00 Per Person 

 
20. Advertising    
i. Wall Rink Board  T $425.00  Per Year 
ii. Zamboni  T $650.00  Per Side 

 
21. Administrative Items    
i. Labour (Clean-up, Set-up, etc.)  T $60.00 Per Person/Per Hour 
ii. Event and Equipment Rental Damage 

Deposit 
T $500.00 Per Booking 

iii. Administrative Fee (Membership Refund or 
Cancellation)  

E $25.00 Per Membership 

iv. Locker Rental (Greenview Regional 
Multiplex) 

T $1.00 Per Use 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

57



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           12   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

22. Ball Diamonds    
i. Rental Rate T $50.00 Per Game 
ii. Tournament Rate (Maximum Day Rate per 

Ball Diamond) 
T $130.00 Per Day 

iii. Youth Rental Rate T $25.00 Per Game 
iv. Youth Tournament Rate (Maximum Day 

Rate Per Ball Diamond) 
T $65.00 Per Day 

v. Group Open Use (Ball Diamond Overflow 
Area – Non-event Rental) 

T $500.00 Per Private Booking 

 
23. Grande Cache Campground    
i. Full Service (Includes Power, Water and 

Sewer, one fire wood bundle) 
T $50.00 Per Night 

ii. Partial Service (Includes Power, Water, one 
bundle of firewood) 

T $45.00 Per Night 

iii. Open Tent area T $25.00 Per Night 
iv. Monthly site rate (Full Service) 

Availability Determined Upon Season Opening 
T $1,100.00 Per Month 

v. Firewood  T $20.00 Wheelbarrow Load 
vi. Cook Shack Rental  T $100.00 Per Day 

 
 Recreation Greenview Regional Multiplex 

 

 Recreation Centre Fees – General Admittance   
24. Daily Pass    
i. Family T $20.00 Per Pass 
ii. Adult (18+) T $9.00 Per Pass 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $6.50 Per Pass 
iv. Child (3-12) T $5.00 Per Pass 
v. Senior (60-69) T $6.50 Per Pass 
vi. Super Senior (70+)  N/A Free Per Pass 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Pass 

 
25. 10x Punch Pass 

Expiration 2 Years from Date of Purchase  
   

i. Family T $180.00 Per Pass 
ii. Adult (18+) T $81.00 Per Pass 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $58.50 Per Pass 
iv. Child (3-12) T $45.00 Per Pass 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

58



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           13   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

v. Senior (60-69) T $58.50 Per Pass 
vi. Super Senior (70+)  N/A Free Per Pass 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Pass  
 
 
26. 

 
Monthly Membership 

   

i. Family T $110.00 Per Membership  
ii. Adult (18+) T $50.00 Per Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $35.00 Per Membership 
iv. Child (3-12) T $25.00 Per Membership 
v. Senior (60-69) T $35.00 Per Membership 
vi. Super Senior (70+)  N/A Free Per Membership 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Membership  

 
27. 3 Month Membership    
i. Family  T $316.00 Per Membership 
ii. Adult (18+) T $145.00 Per Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $100.50 Per Membership 
iv. Child (3-12) T $72.00 Per Membership 
v. Senior (60-69) T $100.00 Per Membership 
vi. Super Senior (70+) N/A Free Per Membership 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Membership 

 
28. 6-Month Membership    
i. Family T $605.00 Per Membership 
ii. Adult (18+) T $275.00 Per Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $195.00 Per Membership 
iv. Child (3-12) T $140.00 Per Membership 
v. Senior (60-69) T $195.00 Per Membership 
vi. Super Senior (70+) and Children (Under 3) N/A Free Per Membership 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Membership 

 
 
29. 

Annual Membership    

i. Family T $1,100.00 Per Membership 
ii. Adult (18+) T $500.00 Per Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $350.00 Per Membership 
iv. Child (3-12) T $250.00 Per Membership 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

59



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           14   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

v. Senior (60-69) T $350.00 Per Membership 
vi. Super Senior (70+)  N/A Free Per Membership 
vii. Children Under 3 N/A Free Per Membership 

 
 Family – Additional Child/Youth – Member & Corporate Discounts  
30. Daily Pass Addition    
i. Youth (13-17) T $4.00 Per Additional Member 
ii. Child (3-12) T $2.50 Per Additional Member 
iii. Under 3 T Free  

 
31. 10x Punch Pass Addition 

Expiration 2 Years from Date of Purchase 
   

i. Youth (13-17) T $27.00 Per Additional Punch Pass 
ii. Child (3-12) T $20.00 Per Additional Punch Pass 
iii. Children Under 3 T Free Per Additional Punch Pass 

 
32. Monthly Membership – Additional 

Child/Youth – Member & Corporate 
Discounts 

   

i. Youth (13-17) T $17.50 Per Additional 
Membership 

ii. Child (3-12) T $12.50 Per Additional 
Membership 

iii. Children Under 3 T Free Per Additional 
Membership 

 
33. 3 Month Membership - Additional 

Child/Youth – Member & Corporate 
Discounts 

   

i. Youth (13-17) T $50.00 Per Additional 
Membership 

ii. Child (3-12) T $35.00 Per Additional 
Membership 

iii. Under 3 T Free  
 

34. 6 Month Membership Additional 
Child/Youth – Member & Corporate 
Discounts 

   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

60



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           15   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

i. Youth (13-17) T $95.00 Per Additional 
Membership 

ii. Child (3-12) T $70.00 Per Additional 
Membership 

iii. Under 3 T Free  
 

35. Annual Membership Additional 
Child/Youth – Member & Corporate 
Discounts 

   

i. Youth (13-17) T $175.00 Per Additional 
Membership 

ii. Child (3-12) T $125.00 Per Additional 
Membership 

iii. Under 3 T Free  
 

 Recreation Centre Fees - (Corporate Rate – 15% Discount) – General Admittance 
36. Monthly Membership Addition    
i. Family T $93.50 Per Additional 

Membership 
ii. Adult (18+) T $42.50 Per Additional 

Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $29.50 Per Additional 

Membership 
iv. Child (3-12) T $21.50 Per Additional 

Membership 
v. Senior (60-69) T $29.50 Per Additional 

Membership 
vi. Super Senior (70+) T Free Per Additional 

Membership 
 

37. 3 Month Membership Addition    
i. Family  T $270.00 Per Additional 

Membership 
ii. Adult (18+) T $125.00 Per Additional 

Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $85.00 Per Additional 

Membership 
iv. Child (3-12) T $60.00 Per Additional 

Membership 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

61



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           16   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

v. Senior (60-69) T $85.00 Per Additional 
Membership 

vi. Super Senior (70+) T Free Per Additional 
Membership 

 
38. 6-Month Membership Addition    
i. Family T $515.00 Per Membership 
ii. Adult (18+) T $235.00 Per Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $165.00 Per Membership 
iv. Child (3-12) T $120.00 Per Membership 
v. Senior (60-69) T $165.00 Per Membership 
vi. Super Senior (70+) T Free Per Membership 

 
39. Annual Membership Addition    
i. Family T $935.00 Per Membership 
ii. Adult (18+) T $425.00 Per Membership 
iii. Youth (13-17) T $300.00 Per Membership 
iv. Child (3-12) T $215.00 Per Membership 
v. Senior (60-69) T $300.00 Per Membership 
vi. Super Senior (70+) T Free Per Membership 

Annual Membership Sale: 15% off 
Does not apply to punch passes or corporate membership. Discount offered on 6 & 12 month memberships only. 

 
40. Recreation Fees - Childmind    
i. Per Child T $5.00 Per Child, Per Session 
ii. 10 x Punch Pass (Expiration 2 Years From Date 

of Purchase) 
T $45.00 Per Punch Pass 

iii. 20 x Punch Pass (Expiration 2 Years From Date 
of Purchase) 

T $80.00 Per Punch Pass 

 
Recreation Centre Fees – Fitness Centre 
41. Personal Training Rates – One Person     
i. 1 Session T $45.00 Per Session 
ii. 3 Sessions T $130.00 Per 3 Sessions 
iii. 5 Sessions T $215.00 Per 5 Sessions 
iv. 10 Sessions T $415.00 Per 10 Sessions 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

62



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           17   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

42. Personal Training Rates - 2 People    
i. 1 Session T $65.00 Per Session 
ii. 3 Sessions T $180.00 Per 3 Session 
iii. 5 Sessions T $275.00 Per 5 Session 
iv. 10 Sessions T $500.00 Per 10 Session 
 
43. Personal Trainer – Contractor    
i. 1 Person  T $15.00 Per Hour 
ii. Small Group T $25.00 Per Hour 
iii. Monthly T $300.00 Per Agreement 

 
Recreation Centre Fees – Facility Rentals  
44. Dance Studio A or B    
i. Hourly T $35.00 Per Hour 
ii. Daily  T $200.00 Per Day 

 
45. Dance Studio A & B    
i. Hourly T $60.00 Per Hour 
ii. Daily (9am – 9pm) T $250.00 Per Day 

 
46. Aquatic Centre    
i. Lane or Leisure Pool (up to 35), Hot Amenities 

included 
T $100.00 Per Hour 

ii. Lane and Leisure Pool Rental (up to 70 People), 
Hot Amenities Included 

T $200.00 Per Hour 

iii. Additional Guard T $35.00 Per hour 
 

47. Fieldhouse Rate – Per Court    
i. Daily (9:00am – 9:00pm) T $250.00 Per Day, Per Court 
ii. Non-Prime Time Hourly (9:00 am – 3:00 pm) T $40.00 Per Weekend, Per Court 
iii. Prime Time Hourly (3:00pm-Close/Weekends) T $50.00 Per hour, Per Court 
iv. Youth Rate Hourly T $30.00 Per hour, Per Court 

 
48. Fieldhouse Rate – All Courts    
i. Daily (9:00am-9:00pm) T $650.00 Per Weekday, All Courts 
ii. Non-Prime Time (9:00am-3:00pm) T $90.00 Per Non-Prime Time,  

All Courts 
iii. Weekend Hourly (3:00pm-Close/Weekends) T $150.00 Per Weekend, All Courts 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

63



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           18   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

iv. Youth Rate Hourly T $80.00 Per Event, All Courts 
 

49. Concession and Merchandise     
i. Beverages, Food, Coffee T Market Value  Per Item 
ii. Aquatic Accessories and Socks T Suggested Retail Value Per Item 
iii. Concession Rental  T $150.00 Per Day 

 
 
50. 

Stage Rental (Greenview Regional Multiplex 
Only) 

   
Per Use $500.00 Deposit 

 
51. Dance Floor (Greenview Regional Multiplex 

Only) 
T $500.00 Per Use 

$500.00 Deposit 
 

52. Commercial Kitchen and Bar     
i. Weekday  T $200.00 Per Day 
ii. Weekend  T $300.00 Per Day 

 
53. Board Room (A or B)    
i. Hourly T $30.00  
ii. Daily T $150.00  

 
54. Board Room (A and B)    
i. Hourly T $50.00  
ii. Daily T $250.00  

 
55. Party Room  

 
T $35.00 Per Hour 

(2 Hour rental minimum) 
 

56. Party at the ‘Plex!    
i. Greenview Splash T $110.00  
ii. Greenview Tidal Wave T $130.00  
iii. Greenview Hurricane  T $250.00  
iv. Fieldhouse Fun  T $150.00  
v. Child Play Party T $130.00  
vi. Splash & Party T $140.00  
vii. Wedding/Special Event Package – Includes 

Kitchen, Bar, Dance Floor, Stage 
T $1,600.00  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

64



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           19   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

57. Event Sponsorship Opportunities     
i. Fieldhouse Extravaganza T $225.00  
ii. Kidtopia Play T $100.00  
iii. Splashin’ Fun T $300.00  
iv. Bather Bonus T $200.00  

 
 
58. 

 
Security Deposits 

   

i. Cleaning Deposit E $50.00  
ii. Rental Security Deposit – Boardroom/Party 

Room 
E $200.00  

iii. Rental Security Deposit – Fieldhouse (User 
Groups) 

E $500.00  

iv. Rental Security Deposit – Fieldhouse (Social 
Event) 

E $1,000.00  

 
59. Special Events    
i. Toonie Swim E $2.00  

 
Recreation Centre Fees – Registered Programs  
60. Aquatics  Members  Non-

Members 
 

i. Swim for Life - Parent & Tot, Level 1-3 (8 @ 
30min) 

T $45.00 $55.00  

ii. Swim for Life – Preschool, Level 1-5 (8 @ 
30min) 

T $45.00 $55.00  

iii. Swim for Life – Swimmer, Level 1-6 (8 @ 
45min)  

T $55.00 $65.00  

iv. Swim for Life - Adult Swimmer, Level 1-3 (8 @ 
60min) 

T $75.00 $85.00  

v. Swim for Life - Fitness Swimmer (8 @ 60min) T $75.00 $85.00  
vi. Canadian Swim Patrol Programs - Rookie 

Patrol, Ranger Patrol & Star Patrol (8 @ 
60min) 

T $75.00 $85.00  

vii. Private Swimming Lessons  T $25.00  $25.00  Per 30 minutes  
viii. Semi-Private Swimming Lessons (2+ 

participants, hr/participant) 
T $20.00 $20.00 Per 30 minutes  

ix. Junior Lifeguard Club (session based) T $10.00 $12.00 Per Hour 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

65



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           20   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

x. Red Cross Standard First Aid – C.P.R.-C & 
A.E.D. 

T  $150.00 $160.00  

xi. Red Cross Babysitting Course (6 hours) T $35.00  $45.00   
      
61. Lifeguard Leadership Courses     
i. Lifesaving Society – Bronze Star T $110.00 $120.00  
ii. Lifesaving Society – Bronze Medallion  T $150.00 $160.00  
iii. Lifesaving Society – Bronze Cross T $150.00 $160.00  
iv. Lifesaving Society National Lifeguard  T $350.00 $360.00  
v. Lifesaving Society National Lifeguard – 

RECERTIFICATION 
T $80.00 $90.00  

vi. Water Fitness (Session Based) T $8.00 $10.00  
vii. Water Fitness (Drop-in) T $10.00 $12.00  

 
62. Child & Youth Programming   Members Non-

Members 
 

i. Child Programming  T $4.00 $6.00 Per Session  
ii. Youth Programming  T $6.00 $8.00 Per Session  
iii. Parented Programming T $2.00 $4.00 Per Session 

 
63. Fitness Programming   Members Non-

Members 
 

i. Child Programming  T $4.00 $6.00 Per Session 
ii. Youth Programming  T $6.00 $8.00 Per Session 
iii. Adult Programming  T $8.00 $10.00 Per Session 

 
64. Drop-in Registered Programs   Members  Non-

Members 
 

i. Adult  T $10.00 $12.00  
ii. Youth T $8.00 $10.00  
iii. Child T $6.00 $8.00  

 
65. Johnson Park    
i. Unserviced Site (Includes firewood) T $25.00 Per Unit/Per Night 
     
66. Moody’s Crossing     
i. Unserviced Site (Includes firewood) T $25.00 Per Unit/Per Night  
     

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

66



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           21   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

67. Shuttler Flats Provincial Recreation Area    
i. Group Use Area (Includes firewood) T $50.00 Per Night 

 
68. Smoky River South Provincial Recreation 

Area 
   

i. Unserviced Site (Includes firewood) T $25.00 Per Unit/Per Night 
 

69. Sheep Creek Provincial Recreation Area    
i. Unserviced Site (Includes firewood) T $25.00 Per Unit/Per Night 
70. Kakwa River Provincial Recreation Area    
i. Unserviced Site (Includes firewood) T $25.00 Per Unit/Per Night  

 
71. Swan Lake     
i. Unserviced Site (Includes firewood) T $25.00 Per Unit/Per Night 

 
72. Outdoor Recreation Summer Camps T $20.00 Per Participant/Per Day 

 

PROTECTIVE/ENFORCEMENT SERVICES – Schedule E 
 

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee in $ Unit 

Fire Services – All Locations 
1. Fire Inspection Fees    
i. Copy of Fire Inspection Report T $50.00 Each  
ii. After Hours Fire Inspection Request  T $75.00 Per hour  
iii. Special Event Fire Inspection Request  T $50.00 Each  
iv. Fire Inspection Request  T $50.00 Each  
v. Occupant Load Calculation Request 

(includes card and holder) 
T $35.00 Each  

vi. Property Search Request T $50.00 Each  
vii. Fire Extinguisher Training (Company) T $25.00 Per person  

Fire Extinguisher Training (General 
Public) 

 Free  

viii. Copy of Fire Investigation Report  T $50.00 Each  
ix. Fire Investigation Photographs  T $50.00 Each  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

67



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           22   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee in $ Unit 

     
2. Response to Fire Incidents    
i. Within Greenview T $650.00 Per hour, per unit 
ii. Outside Greenview T $650.00 Per hour, per unit 
     
 
 
3.  

 
Response to Motor Vehicle Collision, 
Rescue, and Dangerous Goods Incidents 

   

i. Within Greenview T $650.00 Per hour, per unit 
ii.  Outside Greenview T $650.00 Per hour, per unit 
iii. Provincial Highways T As per Alberta 

Transportation Rates 
Per hour, per unit 

 Note: Administrative costs and the cost of replacing equipment and/or materials used, lost, or damaged during 
an incident response are charged in addition to the above. 

 
4.  Dog Licensing Fees (Grande Cache)    
i. Female Dog  $30.00 Per License 
ii. Male Dog  $30.00 Per License 
iii. Spayed or Neutered Dog  $20.00 Per License 
iv. Late Penalty (Applications on or after 

February 1st) 
 $10.00 Per License 

v.  Lost or Defaced License Tag 
(Replacement Fee)  

 $5.00 Per License 

 

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION – Schedule F 

An interest charge of 1.5% per month shall be imposed on unpaid accounts receivable, excluding water 
and sewer public utility accounts and property tax accounts. 

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee in $ Unit 

1. Photocopying    
i. Tax, Utilities, Minutes or Bylaws, and Other 

Documents  
T $1.00  Per page 

 
2. Documents    
i. Planning or Otherwise, Any Size T $10.00  Per Search  
ii. Faxed Copies (Incoming/Outgoing) T $1.00  Per Page 
iii. Access to Information (FOIP), Research T $25.00  Per Hour 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

68



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           23   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENGINEERING GENERAL – Schedule G 
 

 Description GST 
Status 

Fee in $ Unit 

1. Road Closure 
i. Application Fee E $1,500.00  
ii. Sale of Road Allowance for the Purpose of Road 

Closure. As Determined by Accurate Assessment. 
E Fair Market Value  

 
2. Approaches  

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee in $ Unit 

 
3. Taxes    
i. Tax Certificate to Registered Landowner E No charge  
ii. Tax Certificate to Others E $50.00  Per Roll Number 
iii. Tax Search to Others E $50.00  Per Roll Number 
iv. Online Tax Certificate to Others E $25.00 Per Tax Certificate  
v. Online Tax Search E $15.00 Per Search 
vi. Tax Notification Charges E $75.00 Per Tax Notification 

 
4. Assessment 
i. Assessment Record to Landowner E $5.00  Per Roll Number 
ii. Assessment Record to Others E $10.00  Per Roll Number 
iii. NSF Fee E $50.00 Per Fee 

 
5. Mail Tube T $15.00 Per Tube 

 
6. Assessment Review Board Complaint Registration Fees 
i. Residential with 3 or fewer dwellings and 

farmland 
E $50.00  

ii. Residential 4 or more dwellings E $650.00  
iii. Non-Residential E $650.00  
iv. Business Tax E $50.00  
v. Tax Notice (Other than Business Tax) E $30.00 Per Facility 
vi. Linear Property - Power Generation  E $650.00 Per LPUID 
vii. Linear Property - Other E $50.00  
viii. Equalized Assessment  E $650.00  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

69



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           24   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status 

Fee in $ Unit 

i. Approach Application Request Fee (Non-
Refundable) 

E $175.00  Per Approach 

ii. Construction: Gravel Approach 
*The price may be reduced by $500 for special 
circumstances, please contact the Manager of 
Construction and Engineering for more information 

E $3,500.00 Per Approach 

iii. Upgrade/Relocation: Gravel Approach E $4,000.00 Per Approach 
iv. Construction: Asphalt Approach E $10,500.00 Per Approach 
v. Upgrade/Relocation: Asphalt Paved Approach E $15,500.00 Per Approach 

 
3. Road Allowance License 
i. Road Allowance License Fee E $100.00 Per term 

 
4. Inspections 
i. Seismic Pre-Inspections E $100.00  Per Occurrence 
ii. Seismic Post-Inspections E $100.00  Per Occurrence 
iii. Seismic Non-Compliance E $100.00 Per Occurrence 

 
5. Land Acquisition (Right-of-Way and Road Widening) 
i. Properties 0-3 Acres T $25,100.00 Per Acre 
ii. Properties 3-5 Acres T $17,750.00 Per Acre 
iii. Properties 5-10 Acres T $11,850.00 Per Acre 
iv. Properties 10-20 Acres T $7,450.00 Per Acre 
v. Properties 30-40 Acres T $4,050.00 Per Acre 
vi. Properties Over 40 Acres T $2,400.00 Per Acre 
vii. Properties Minimum Payment T $150.00  Per Occurrence 
ix. On parcels more than 40 Acres, Where an Existing 

Residence is on the Property, for up to 50 Meters 
Each Side of the Residential Driveway 

T $3,000  Per Acre 

x. Borrow Pit Acquisition and Access and Damages T $1.00  Per m3 
xi. Shelterbelt Loss, per 5m Width, Tree Height Under 

10 feet 
T $1.50  Per m 

xii. Shelterbelt Loss, per 5m Width, Tree Height Over 
10 feet 

T $2.50  Per m 

xiii. Application Fee for Access Road Requests T $500.00 
 

 

xiv. Application Fee for Residential Road Requests T $500.00 
 

 

 
6. Fencing 
i. Removal of Old Fence by Landowner T $1.25  Per m 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

70



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           25   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status 

Fee in $ Unit 

ii. Removal of Old Fence and Installation of New 
Fence by Landowner Including Labour and 
Materials 

T $12.00 Per m 

iii. Removal of Old Fence and Installation of New 
Fence by Greenview 

T No Compensation  

 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES – Schedule H 
If not paid within 30 days of the billing date, metered services and bulk accounts will incur a 

monthly penalty of 1.5%. 

Where work is done at cost, the cost will include the amount expended by Greenview for all 
expenditures incurred performing the work, including administration.  

All invoices must be paid within 30 days of billing. If not paid within 30 days of billing, the invoice 
will be subject to monthly interest of 1.5%. 

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee  Unit 

1. Administrative Fees  
i. Service On/Off Regular Hours E $50.00  per Hour/per member 

of staff (1 hour min.) 
ii. Service On/After Hours/Call Out E $100.00 per hour /per member 

of staff (1 hour min.) 
iii. Utilities Account Deposit  E $100.00 Per Account 
iv. Water Meter & Hardware/Replacement/Repairs 

(Owner Responsibility) 
E Based on actual 

replacement/repair 
cost 

Based on actual 
replacement/repair cost 

v. Water/Sewer Installation Application Fee E $150.00 Per application  
(Non- Refundable) 

 
2. Water/Sewer Connections  
i. Connection Fee  E $13,000.00  per connection 
ii. Installation Fee Deposit 

(To install from Main Line to Property Line)1 
E $8,000.00 per service 

iii. Installation Fee  
(Includes any asphalt, curb and gutter etc.)1 

T at cost per service 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

71



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           26   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee  Unit 

 

 

1 Installation Fee Deposit will be used for the Installation Fee construction cost. Any overage will be due upon completion, or 
any balance will be returned upon completion. 

3.  Water Utility Rates 
Hamlet Service Area: Grande Cache, Grovedale, DeBolt, Landry Heights, Little Smoky, Ridgevalley  

 
Rural Service Area: Crooked Creek, Ridgevalley Senior Complex, Valleyview Rural Waterline 

i. Hamlet and Rural Residential Rate (0 – 30 m3/Month) E $3.50 per m3 
ii. Hamlet Residential Rate (Over 30 m3/Month) E $4.00 per m3 
iii. Hamlet Commercial Rate E $4.00 Per m3 
iv. Rural Residential Rate (Over 30 m3/Month) E $10.00 per m3 
v. Approved Commercial / Industrial Fill Stations E $10.00 per m3 

 
4.  Sewer Rates 
i. 
 

Residential – Single Family Dwelling; Duplex - Per 
Residential – Duplex, Per Self-Contained Dwelling 
Residential – Multi-Family, Per Self-Contained Dwelling 
Churches 
Schools (Per Classroom) 
Royal Canadian Legion Hall 
Senior Citizen’s Drop-In Centre 

 
 

E 
 

 
 

$1.25 

 
 

per m3 (minimum 
$24.00 up to 18 m3) 

ii. Commercial – General Store 
Commercial – Office  
Commercial – Not Classified Elsewhere  

 
E 

 
$1.25 

per m3 (minimum 
$36.00 up to 18 m3) 

iii. Commercial – Laundromat E $1.25 
  

per m3 (minimum 
$56.00 up to 40 m3) 

iv. 
 

Commercial – Cafes 
Commercial – Garages 
Community Halls & Other Recreation Facilities 

 
E 

$1.25 
 

per m3 (minimum 
$48.00 up to 40 m3) 

v. Correctional Institutions 
Commercial – Hotels (Rooms & Bar)  

E $1.25 per m3 (minimum 
$80.00 up to 75 m3) 

 
5. Water Point Facilities 
i. Potable Water Points Residential/Agriculture E $3.50  per m3 
ii. Potable Water Points Commercial E $9.50 per m3 
iii. Non-Potable Water Points E $2.00  per m3 
iv. Nose Creek Water Bottle Fill Station  E $1.50  Per 18.5 L 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

72



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           27   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee  Unit 

 
6. Sewer Lagoon 
i. Commercial, Industrial, & Non-Greenview Resident 

Tipping Rate 
E $12.00 per m3 

ii. Residential & Verified Non-Profit E $3.00 per m3 
 

7.  Environmental Site Key/Fob (Approved 3rd Parties Only) 
i. Key Fob  E $100.00 Deposit/Initial and 

Replacement 
 

Grande Cache Sewer Rental 
Rental of the Electric Sewer Snake or Electric Sewer Camera is available to Contractors only. Rentals must be returned clean. 

Failure to do so will result in a cleaning fee. 
 
8.  Electric Sewer Snake 
i Refundable Deposit E $500.00  
ii. 4 Hour Minimum Charge T $70.00  
iii. Daily Rate T $90.00  
iv. Weekly Rate (5 Day Rental) T $400.00  

 
9.  Electric Sewer Camera 
i. Refundable Deposit E $500.00  
ii. 4 hour Minimum Charge T $137.00  
iii. Daily Rate T $195.00  
iv. Weekly Rate (5 Day Rental) T $780.00  

 
10.  Cleaning Fee T $100.00 per rental  

 
Waste Collection and Recycling (Grande Cache Only) 
11.  Residential Solid Waste Collection and Disposal    
i. Residential Waste Collection Fee E $10.25 per month 
ii. Recycle Collection Fee  E $10.25 per month 

 
12.  Commercial Rates 
i. Commercial Waste Bin Rental E $50.00  per month 
ii. Commercial Recycling Bin Rental E $15.00 per month 
iii. Recycle Collection Fee E $10.25 per month 
iv. Waste Dumping Fee, Standard Service, Per Bin E $80.00  per month 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

73



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           28   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 Description GST 
Status* 

Fee  Unit 

Commercial Solid Waste Bin Rental Example: 
Commercial Solid Waste Bin Rental ($50.00) + Dumping Fee ($80.00) = $130.00 per month per bin  

Greenview provides pick-up service once a week. 
 

Commercial Recycle Bin Rental Example: 
Commercial Recycle Bin Rental ($15.00) + Dumping Fee ($80.00) and Recycle Fee ($10.25) = $105.25 per month per bin 

Greenview provides pick-up service once a week. 
 
 

13.  Grande Cache Landfill Fees 
i. Greenview Residents  No Fees  
ii. Mixed Load Disposal Fee (Residents and Commercial) E $210.00  per Tonne 
iii. Commercial Waste (By Approval Only) E $105.00  per Tonne 
 
 
iv. 
 

Burnable Wood (Excludes Creosote, Treated Wood and 
Similar Materials)  
Clean Mulch/Woodchips  
Metal  
Cement/Concrete 

 
 

E 
 
 

  
  

$55.00  
  
 

 
 

per Tonne 

v. Freon E $50.00 per Unit for Removal 
 

OPERATIONS – Schedule I 
  Description GST 

Status
* 

Fee in $ Unit 

1. Snowplowing Signs 
i. Any Driveway up to 400 Meters E $50.00 Per 400 m 
ii. Any Driveway Greater than 400 Meters up to 800 meters E $75.00  
iii. Any driveway over 800 meters up to 1200 meters. E $100.00  
iv. For each additional 400 meters over 1200 meters E $25.00  
v. Lost or Replacement Signs E $30.00 Per Sign 

 
2. Culverts – Used or Salvaged 
i. 500 mm or Less T $13.00  Per m 
ii. 600 mm T $15.00  Per m 
iii. 700 mm T $16.00  Per m 
iv. 800 mm T $25.00  Per m 
v. 900 mm T $28.00  Per m 
vi. 1000 mm T $29.00  Per m 
vii. 1200 mm or Greater T $30.00  Per m 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

74



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           29   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

  Description GST 
Status

* 

Fee in $ Unit 

 
3. Dust Control 
i. Application of Calcium Product for Residents and 

Landowners (up to April 15th Each Year) 
T $375.00 

 
Per 200 m 

ii. Late Dust Control Application Fee (Applications submitted 
or mailed after April 15) 

T $500.00 Per 200 m 

iii. Plus: for sections over 200 meters T $6.55 Per Linear Meter 
iv. Application of Calcium Product for Multi-Parcel 

Subdivisions 
T $250.00 Per 100 m 

v. Application of Calcium Product for Industrial and Road Use 
Agreement Holders (up to April 15th Each Year) 
If in front of a residence, the industrial user will be charged 
the residential rate for a maximum distance of 200 meters 

T $1310.00 Per 200 m 

vi. Plus: for sections over 200 meters T $6.55 Per Linear Meter 
 

4. Road Bond 
i. Overload Road Bond Fees (Non-Refundable Payment) E $1,125.00  Per km 
ii.  Plus: Security Deposit (Refundable Subject to Final 

Inspections) 
E   $6,375.00  Per km 

iii. Fixed Fee for the TRAVIS MJ Permitting System E $25.00  Per Permit 
 

5. Community Aggregate 
i. Community Aggregate Payment Levy  E $0.40 Per Tonne 

 
6. Equipment Rental 
i. All Equipment Rentals will be calculated based upon the 

previous year’s ARHCA Equipment Rental Rates Guide  
T 100% of previous year’s 

ARHCA rate 
Per Equipment 

 
7. Road Inspection Fee 
i. Pre-haul and post-haul inspections for log hauls, over-

dimension or overweight hauls, rig moves, pipeline work, 
road bond requests, road ban exemption requests, or any 
road inspections required mid-haul due to terms of road 
use agreement not being kept 

T $250.00 Per Inspection 

 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT – SCHEDULE J 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

75



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           30   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

  Description  GST 
Status* 

Fee in $ Unit 

1. Planning Bylaw (New or Amended) 
i. Land Use Bylaw Amendment Application (Re-zoning) E $1,500.00 Per Application 
ii. New Developer’s Area Structure Plan E $2,500.00 Per Application 
iii. Amendments to any ASP and MDP or Minor ASP E $1,500.00  Per Application 

 
2. Development Permits, General 
i. Residential - Single Detached Dwellings, Duplexes, 

Manufactured/ Modular/RTM/Suites) 
E $150.00 

 
Per Permit 

ii. Residential - Multiple Dwellings (Triplex/Fourplex/Row 
Housing/Apartments, etc.)  

E $75.00  Per unit 

iii. All other Non-Residential/Mixed-Use/New Construction / 
Accessory Uses (Home Occupation / Accessory Buildings, 
Garages, Decks, Hot tubs, Pools, Wheelchair Ramps), 
Additions and All Other Uses 

E $50.00  Per $100,000.00 of 
completed project 

cost (up to a 
maximum of a 

$10,000.00 fee) 
iv. Signage – Permanent / Temporary / Renewal E $50.00  Per Sign 
v. Variance Request E $150.00 Per Request 
vi. Time Extension Request by Developer  E $150.00 Per Request 

 
3. Subdivisions (including Bare Land Condominium Plans) 
i. Subdivision and Condominium Plan Applications, Single Lot 

or Consolidation 
E $450.00  

ii. Plus: each additional lot/unit created E $150.00  
iii. Plan of Subdivision Endorsement Fees E $150.00  Per Title Created 
iv. Condominium Plan Endorsement Fees E $40.00  Per Unit 
v. Time Extension Request by Developer per Application E $500.00  

 
4. Subdivision and Development Appeal Board 
i. Development Appeal Fee (Refundable if Applicant is 

Successful in their Appeal) 
E $500.00  

ii. Subdivision Appeal Fee (Refundable if Applicant is Successful 
in their Appeal) 

E $500.00  

 
5. Development Agreement Review 
i. Residential: up to 4 Lot Subdivision E $1,500.00  
ii. Residential: Greater than 4 Lot Subdivision E $3,000.00  
iii. All Other Recreational, Commercial and Industrial 

Subdivisions 
E $3,000.00  

 
6. Annual Business Licensing 
i. Business License Fee - New application (January 1) E $100.00 Per Application 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

76



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           31   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

  Description  GST 
Status* 

Fee in $ Unit 

ii. Business License- New Application (After July 1) or Annual 
Renewal 

E $50.00 Per Application 

 
7. Business License Temporary/Special Event 
i. Resident  E $30.00  
ii. Non-Resident  E $50.00  
 
 
8. Hawkers or Peddlers 
i. Resident Annual E $45.00  
ii. Resident per Day E $35.00  
iii. Non-Resident Annual E $130.00  
iv. Non-Resident per Day E $50.00  

 
9. Rural Addressing Signage  
i. Signage Permanent/ Replacement and Installation  E $150.00 Per Sign 

 
10. Signage for Subdivisions 
i. Individual Lot Sign E $50.00  Per Sign 
ii. Large Address Sign with Address Tab for Subdivisions of 4 

Lots or Greater 
E $1,000.00  Per Sign 

 
11. Orthographic Printing Based on size and quality of paper, image and 

graphics 
  

i. Colour 8 ½" x 11" Orthographic (Aerial) Photo T $10.00  
 

Per Print 

ii. Colour 11" x 17" Orthographic (Aerial) Photo T $20.00  
 

Per Print 

 
12. Landowner Map Pricing 
i. Hardcopy – Landowner Map (sheets 1-5).  Valleyview, 

DeBolt, Grovedale, Grande Cache and Greenview Overview 
Elevation 

T $25.00  Per Sheet 

 
13. Certificate of Compliance E $200.00 Per Certificate 

 
14. Letter of Concurrence for Communication Tower E $100.00 Per Letter 

 
15. Environmental Site Assessment Inquiries E $200.00  Per Parcel 

 
16. Corporate Advertising  T $100.00 Per Notice 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

77



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           32   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 

 

 

Economic Development – Schedule K 
1. Grande Cache Tourism and Information Centre 
i. Chamber Room (used for meetings or 

workshops, sits 40-50 people)  
 
Includes: 64” Smart Display TV, projector 
screen, flip chart, whiteboard, refrigerator, 
coffee maker, kettle 
 
*Note: if time extends beyond 9 hours, the 
cost is $30.00 per hour for every extra hour 

 
 

T 

 
 

$30.00 

 
 

Per Hour 

 
T 

 
$150.00 

 
Per Day 

ii. Theatre Room (Used for meetings, 
workshops, movies, sits 30-40 people) 
 
Includes: 64” Smart Display TV, projector 
screen, DVD, VHS player, flip chart, kitchen 
facilities 
 
*Note: if time extends beyond 9 hours, the 
cost is $30.00 per hour for every extra hour 

 
T 

 
$30.00 

 
Per Hour 

 
 

T 

 
 

$150.00 

 
 

Per Day 

iii. Mezzanine Level (used for receptions, open 
houses, book launches. Can be included 
with the Chamber Room) 
 
Includes: access to outside balcony 

 
*Note: if time extends beyond 9 hours, the 
cost is $30.00 per hour for every extra hour 

T $30.00 Per Hour 
T $150.00 Per Day 
T $50.00 Per Hour with Chamber 

Room 

 
T 

 
250.00 

 
Per Day with Chamber 

Room 
 
2. Eagles Nest Hall (Capacity up to 65 people with tables and chairs) 

i. Eagles Nest Hall Rental  T $12.50 Per Hour 
T $62.50 Per Day 

ii. Security Deposit E $100.00 Per Rental 
iii. Late Cancellation Fee (Cancellation 48h 

before rental) 
E $25.00 Per Rental 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

78



 
 

Bylaw 22-930           33   
 

BYLAW NO.  22-930 

of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 

 
3. Community and Tourism Programming  
i. Youth Program – under 3 hours N/A Free  

(food bank donations 
welcome) 

 

ii. Youth Program – full day  T $10.00  
iii. Adult Program – under 2 hours N/A Free  

(food bank donations 
welcome) 

 

iv. Adult Program – over 2 hours  T $10 - $20 dependent on 
supplies 

 

*Note: GST Status- ‘E’ refers to tax exempt.   

‘T’ refers to taxable, or GST not included in the listed rate or fee. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 11C2A6DC-8A79-4F31-BC44-FB4BF50C46AF

79



 REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
 

21.01.22   

 
SUBJECT: Township Road 702 – Oxbow Discussion 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER:  
DEPARTMENT: INFRASTRUCTURE & ENGINEERING  DIR: RA PRESENTER: RA 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Governance LEG: SS   

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accepts the report, regarding the natural drainage from the Oxbow 
on Township Road 702, for information, as presented.  
 
BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
 
Administration would like to notify Committee of the Whole of the possible political implications of the 
following Environment and Protected Area (EPA) suggested direction. 
 
In 2022, two culverts on Township Road 702 were failing causing road damage. The Operations department 
responded immediately and started planning for the replacement. The culvert and road repairs were being 
addressed at the same elevation as the previous one. 
 
Ratepayers in the area contacted EPA, formerly known as Alberta Environment and Parks, stating that 
Greenview was draining the Oxbow. EPA then contacted Administration and operations ceased on culvert 
and road repairs and Expression of Interest (EOI) contractors were sent home for a week while an 
investigation took place. EPA made site visits and had discussions on the activity and in the end, Operations 
was allowed to finish the work as planned, as EPA agreed that the culverts had failed. 
 
EPA sent aerial photos of the area dating as far back as 1950, where you can clearly see that when the Twp 
Rd 702 was built, it impeded the natural flow of the Oxbow at the bottom end. The approval for building a 
roadway crossing the wetlands was a little more relaxed back then but would still have been an application. 
Administration has searched for approval but has yet to find documentation. 
 
Administration has recently received an e-mail from EPA (see attached) that is looking to see if Greenview is 
willing to perform the work again, to help re-establish the Oxbow back to its original state (at the time of 
investigation, EPA was acting on a complaint that Greenview was harming the environment). The e-mail sent 

80



 
 

 

insinuates that no compliance orders are being issued at this time but may come in the future. The ratepayers’ 
complaints were based on present and not historical knowledge. The complaints received were as follows; 

• Lowering the Oxbow water level 
• Taking away their scenery/view 
• Lowering the value of homes in the area 
• Removing wildlife in the area 
• Removing the natural nesting of the swans 

 
 
 Administration has a good working relationship with EPA and usually is more than willing to address all 
concerns, but Administration feels there is a need for more discussion. 
 
 
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of Committee of the Whole accepting the report is that they will have a clearer 
understanding of the natural drainage from the Oxbow on Township Road 702. 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The disadvantage of the recommended action is the political implications may reflect negatively 
on Greenview.  

 
2. The disadvantage of the recommended action is that Greenview may appear to not be 
cooperative with other Governmental departments. 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to recommend to Council to lower the Oxbow 
culverts on Township Road 702. 
 
Alternative #2: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to recommend to Council to take no action at 
this time. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
To date, it is estimated Administration has spent 10 hours on complaints from the ratepayers and an 
additional 35 hours from multiple departments. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.   

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  

81



 
 

 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
There are no follow-up actions to the recommended motion. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• E-mail from EPA 
• Historical photos  

82



From: Andrea Sandford
To: Roger Autio
Subject: Township Road 702
Date: Tuesday, March 21, 2023 2:30:16 PM
Attachments: Attachment 1 - Historical aerial photographs.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello Roger,
 
Back in the fall, we had a few conversations regarding Township Road 702, and the impacts that this
road has had on the surrounding environment. At the time, Alberta Environment and Protected
Areas (EPA) completed a review of historical aerial photos to determine how the road has impacted
the oxbow and the lands surrounding the oxbow.

Aerial photos show that the road was constructed in the late 1970’s or the early 1980’s.
Prior to construction of the road, the volume of water in the oxbow appears to be less.
Construction of the road has increased the volume of water to the North of the road, and has
also resulted in a small portion of the East side of the oxbow to dry up South of the road.
The construction of the road appears to have resulted in the impoundment of water to the
North of the road.

 
Work completed to replace or to install additional culverts or drainage structures would likely result
in water levels being restored to more of a natural or pre-disturbance state. However, the presence
of the road will always result in an alteration of the drainage in the area, and it would be ideal to
restore the lands to their original state that existed prior to the construction of Township Road 702.
While it is EPA’s preference to maintain natural drainage, no compliance action is being
contemplated at the present time.
 
Please contact me if you would like to discuss further. Thank you.
 
Andrea Sandford
Compliance Assurance Lead
Alberta Environment and Protected Areas
Regulatory Assurance Division
North Region- Boreal West District
Phone: (780) 624-6238
 

Classification: Protected A

83

mailto:Andrea.Sandford@gov.ab.ca
mailto:Roger.Autio@MDGreenview.ab.ca



 


Classification: Protected A 


September 3, 1950 


 


May 17, 1961 


 







 


Classification: Protected A 


July 1, 1975 


 


October 12, 1981 


 







 


Classification: Protected A 


May 12, 1985 


 


September 11, 1989 


 







 


Classification: Protected A 


September 23, 1997


 


August 2, 2006 


 


 







 


Classification: Protected A 


September 18, 1999 


 


June 30, 2014 


 







 


Classification: Protected A 


June 27, 2021 


 







 

Classification: Protected A 

September 3, 1950 

 

May 17, 1961 

 

84



 

Classification: Protected A 

July 1, 1975 

 

October 12, 1981 

 

85



 

Classification: Protected A 

May 12, 1985 

 

September 11, 1989 

 

86



 

Classification: Protected A 

September 23, 1997

 

August 2, 2006 

 

 

87



 

Classification: Protected A 

September 18, 1999 

 

June 30, 2014 

 

88



 

Classification: Protected A 

June 27, 2021 

 

89



 REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
 

21.01.22   

 
SUBJECT: Construction and Engineering Business Plan 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER: LT 
DEPARTMENT: CONSTRUCTION & ENGINEERING DIR: RA PRESENTER: LT 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Governance LEG: SS   

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial - N/A 
 
Council Bylaw/Policy – Bylaw 21-876 Section 7.2(b) 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole review the Construction and Engineering Business Plan for 
information, as presented. 
 
BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Administration is bringing forward the business plan for Construction and Engineering according to Council 
Bylaw 21-876 Section 7; 7.2; B Receive information from Administration on emerging issues and ongoing 
projects and initiatives. 
 
Construction and Engineering would like to update Committee of The Whole on their business plans to 
provide an understanding of the team’s Operational focus for 2023. The attached PowerPoint presentation 
provides an overview of activities, priorities and Capital Projects all supporting Council’s 2022-2025 Strategic 
Plan.  
  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of Committee of The Whole accepting the recommended action, is that there will be a 
clear understanding of the Construction and Engineering team’s focus and their action plans for the 
coming year. 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 
 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: N/A 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Direct Costs:  
Direct Operational costs associated with the department’s business plan are $5,077,500.00. 

90



 
 

 

 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
The Construction and Engineering Team has 5 FTE staff. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.   

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
There are no follow-up actions to the recommended motion. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• PowerPoint Presentation of the Construction and Engineering Business Plan 

 

91



 REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
 

21.01.22   

 
SUBJECT: Facility Maintenance Business Plan 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER: WP 
DEPARTMENT: FACILITY MAINTENANCE DIR: RA PRESENTER: WP 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Governance LEG: SS   

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw/Policy – Bylaw 21-876, Section 7.2(b) 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole review the Facility Maintenance Business plan for information, as 
presented. 
 
BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Administration is bringing forward the business plan for Facility Maintenance according to Council Bylaw 21-
876 Section 7; 7.2; B Receive information from Administration on emerging issues and ongoing projects and 
initiatives. 
 
Facility Maintenance would like to update Council on their business plans to provide an understanding of the 
teams focus for 2023. The attached PowerPoint presentation provides an overview of activities, priorities and 
Capital Projects all supporting Council’s 2022-2025 Strategic Plan. 
  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Council will be better informed on the Facility Maintenance team’s focus and their business plans for 
the coming year.  

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 
 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: N/A 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Direct Costs:  
Direct Operational costs associated with the departments business plan is $3,773,786.00 
 

92



 
 

 

 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
The Facility Maintenance Team has 12 FTE and 6 Seasonal Staff. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
There are no follow up actions to the recommended motion. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• PowerPoint Presentation of the Facility Maintenance Business Plan 

 

93



Date Chief Administrative Officer Action Log Responsible Party NOTES/STATUS

23.06.27 Regular Council Meeting

June 27, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.339 Moved by: COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE SCHLIEF
That Council schedule a Public Hearing prior to second reading of Bylaw 
23-944, to be held July 25, 2023, at 9:15 a.m. 
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

P & E

June 27, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.342 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council grant a one (1) year time extension to the endorsement for subdivision file S19-014 
on NW 9-69-21-W5M, pursuant to MGA Section 657(6)(b), allowing the Subdivision Authority 
Approval to be registered with Alberta Land Titles by August 2023.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

P & E

June 27, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.343 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council appoint Chad Brotnov, and Christalee Brotnov to the Little Smoky Cemetery 
Committee for a 3-year term renewing at the 2026 Organizational Meeting. 
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

CAO Complete

June 27, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.344 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That Council appoint Greg Nolan, and Darrel Delisle to the Grande Cache Recreation Board for a 1-
year term to be reviewed at the 2023 Organizational Meeting.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

CAO Complete

94



June 27, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.345 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council direct Administration to investigate providing a community water source from the 
dugout on SW 3-73-22 W5M.
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Delorme, 
Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, 
Councillor Berry
AGAINST: Reeve Olsen
                                                                                                             CARRIED

I & E In Progess

June 27, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.347  Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council authorize Administration to develop a formal sublease with the Grande Cache 
Firefighter's Association for the operation of Fireman's Pit, located at E 28 – 56 – 8 – W6M, to 
come back to Council for approval at a future Council Meeting.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

Comm. Serv In Progess

June 27, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.348 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF
That Council authorize Administration to establish an agreement with the Grande Cache 
Firefighter's Association for the purpose of granting the Association ownership of all infrastructure 
located at Fireman's Pit, within Greenview's provincial recreation disposition (REC 850036).
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

Comm. Serv In Progess

June 27, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.349 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council authorize Administration to add the Grande Cache Firefighter's Association to 
Greenview's Additional Named Insured (ANI) list, under Greenview's insurance company.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor 
Berry
AGAINST: Councillor Rosson
                                                                                                             CARRIED

Comm. Serv/Corp In Progess

95



June 27, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.350 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council authorize Administration to provide lawn mowing services, and track the costs 
associated at Fireman's Pit as an in-kind donation to the Grande Cache Firefighter's Association for 
a period of 3 years, from 2023 – 2025.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

Comm. Serv In Progess

June 27, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.351 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council authorize funding to the grant recipients in the amount of $314,321.11 as indicated 
on the attached 2023 Approved Spring Grant Listing, with $309,321.11 of funds to come from the 
2023
Community Services Grants and Sponsorships budget and $5,000.00 of funds to come from the 
2023 Agricultural Services Budget. 
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

Comm. Serv Complete

June 27, 2023
Deputy Reeve Bill Smith made a notice of motion that Administration investigate what steps can 
be done to remediate and prevent weed spread regarding the mat cleaning and storage yard in 
the industrial park in the Hamlet of Grovedale.

CAO
In Progress - RFD prepared for July 25 

RCM

June 27, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.354 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON	
That Council direct Administration to do an in-house high level feasibility study on costs for 
extending the Valleyview Rural Water line on TWP RD 700 to the Forestry Camp (NW 32-69-22-
W5), with the possibility of cost sharing on the installation, to be brought back to the July 25, 
2023, Council Meeting.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
AGAINST: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Ratzlaff
                                                                                                             CARRIED

I & E In Progess -- Coming to July 25, RCM

23.06.20 Committee of the Whole

96



June 20, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.47 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to direct Administration to investigate the 
feasibility and cost of upgrading the street lighting along main street (RR262) and the Ridgevalley 
arena. 
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor Ratzlaff
ABSENT: Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen
                                                                                                                 CARRIED

I & E In progress

June 20, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.48 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to direct Administration to prepare a report 
on the street lighting locations within Greenview Hamlets.
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, 
Councillor Berry
AGAINST: Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Dale Smith
ABSENT: Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen
                                                                                                                 CARRIED

I & E In progress

June 20, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.51 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to choose option 3 of the Expression of 
Interest cost-saving measures;
1) Combined pricing and equipment hiring of contractors
2) The ability for Administration to utilize a single contractor for smaller projects
3) Tendering Forestry Trunk Road water truck services
4) Tendering Forestry Trunk Road dozer services for snow drifts
5) Requesting annual quotes from contractors in lieu of using Alberta Road Builders Association 
rates.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Berry, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen
AGAINST: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott
ABSENT: Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                 CARRIED

I & E In progress

June 20, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.52 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Committee of the Whole recommends that Council award the approved 2023 Spring 
Community Grants, as amended.
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, 
Deputy Reeve Bill Smith
                                                                                                                 CARRIED

Comm. Serv Complete

97



June 20, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.54 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to direct Administration to prepare a report 
with cost estimates to accommodate;
-	Coordinating of Surveying of lots
-	Waive Greenview required development permits
-	Coordinating of waste removal bins
-	Review covering tipping fees at Greenview Regional Waste
-	Coordinating of tree removal
-	Provide clarity on tax reassessment
-	
For the purpose of potentially providing these services to Greenview residents who have 
experienced building loss due to 2023 wildfires.
FOR: Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, 
Deputy Reeve Bill Smith
                                                                                                                 CARRIED

P & E
Complete - COTW Motion was moved 

forward to Council

23.06.13 Regular Council Meeting

June 13, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.316 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council schedule a public hearing for Bylaw No. 23-938, to be held on July 11, 2023, at 9:30 
a.m.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve 
Olsen, Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

P & E Complete

June 13, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.317 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council authorise the funding of up to $3,000,000 from the Disaster Response Reserve for the 
2023 wildfire response.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve 
Olsen, Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Corp Serv
In progress

waiting on word of grant funding 
Greenview will receive

June 13, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.318 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council direct Administration to host a joint event with the City of Grande Prairie, and County 
of Grande Prairie, on September 20, 2023, during the World Petroleum Congress in Calgary, 
Alberta, up to $15,000.00, with funds to come from Councils Hospitality 2023 Budget.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve 
Olsen, Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

CAO Services In progress

98



June 13, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.321 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council approve additional funding to a maximum of $179,580 to Grande Spirit Foundation to 
complete Option 1 of the DeBolt Senior Housing project in 2024 with funds to come from the 
Unrestricted Reserve.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme
AGAINST: Councillor Ratzlaff, Reeve Olsen
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Corp Serv In Progress

June 13, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.324 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council approve sponsorship in the amount of $1500.00 to the Town of Valleyview for the 
Canada Day Fireworks Display, to be held July 1, 2023, in Valleyview, Alberta, with funds to come 
from the Community Services Grants and Sponsorships Budget.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve 
Olsen, Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm. Serv Complete

June 13, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.325 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That Council approve sponsorship in the amount of $2500.00 to the Teepee Creek Stampede 
Association for the 2023 Teepee Creek Stampede event, July 13 to July 16, 2023, with funds to 
come from the Community Services Grants & Sponsorships budget.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme
AGAINST: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm. Serv Complete

June 13, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.326 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council direct Administration to proceed with the development and implementation of a 
digital recognition program and season ending appreciation BBQ to acknowledge and honor the 
exceptional service of firefighters during the 2023 Greenview Wildfires with a budget of $5,000.00, 
with funds to come from Council’s Hospitality Budget.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve 
Olsen, Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comms/CAO
In progress - Media release kicked off 

campaign on July 11

99



June 13, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.328 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council direct Administration to award a contract for crushing 100,000 tonnes of gravel at 
Westview Gravel Pit (SML030053) to 2128222 Alberta Ltd. o/a Paragon Custom Crushing, in the 
amount of $985,000.00 plus GST, with funds to come from Operations’ 2023 Forestry Trunk Road 
Maintenance Budget.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve 
Olsen, Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

I & E In progress

June 13, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.329 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That Council awards the Request for Tender for one new Ice Resurfacer to Industrial Machine Inc., 
in the amount of $126,595.00 plus GST, with funds to come from the 2023 Recreation Services 
Capital Budget, project number RE23009.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve 
Olsen, Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm. Serv Complete

June 13, 2023 Councillor Dale Smith made a Notice of Motion that Council direct Administration to look into 
providing a community water source from the dugout on SW 3-73-22 W5M.

CAO Services complete

June 13, 2023

MOTION: 23.06.332 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council direct Administration to investigate the impact of the potential for land sharing 
network in Treaty 8 Territory.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve 
Olsen, Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

P & E in progress

23.05.23 Regular Council Meeting

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.287 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council schedule a Public Hearing prior to second reading of Bylaw
23-943, to be held on June 27, 2023, at 9:15 a.m. 
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

P & E Complete

100



May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.294 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council approve a third approach request to access NE 23-71-20 W5M based on public safety 
concerns.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

I & E Complete

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.296 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council approves the Greenview Agricultural Service Board’s nomination of Tollefson Farms 
for the 2023 Farm Family Award.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm Serv. Complete

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.298 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council approve sponsorship to the Canadian Motorcycle Tourism Association in the amount 
of $5,000.00 for the “Remembering the Italian Campaign & Battle of Ortona” event to be held 
September 8 – 10th, 2023, in Grande Prairie, Alberta.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Delorme
AGAINST: Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm Serv. Complete

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.299 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council approve sponsorship in the amount of $2,500.00 to the Fox Creek Chamber of 
Commerce for the Annual “Big Iron Day” to be held September 23, 2023, in Fox Creek, Alberta.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm Serv. Complete

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.300 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council approve sponsorship in the amount of $2,000.00 to the Grande Prairie Traditional 
Pow Wow c/o Grande Prairie Aboriginal Circle of Services for the Traditional Pow Wow to be held 
June 24 & 25, 2023, in Grande Prairie, Alberta.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Delorme
AGAINST: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm Serv. Complete

101



May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.301 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON	
That Council direct administration to extend memberships at the GRM due to wildfire closures.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm Serv. Complete

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.266 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council support the submission of the Forest Resource Improvement Plan of Alberta (FRIAA) 
FireSmart Program application, for the purpose of developing a comprehensive public awareness 
campaign based on the 2021 Sturgeon Heights Wildfire Hazard & Risk Assessment.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm. Serv Complete

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.267 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council choose the five Food Banks that serve Greenview residents (Fox Creek, Valleyview, 
DeBolt, Grande Prairie, and Grande Cache) as the donation recipient(s) for the 2023 Clay Shoot 
Stakeholder Event, with the total funds raised split equally among them.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

P & E Completed

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.268 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council directs Administration to set the subsidized amount of registration fees for the 
Annual Clay Shoot event to 50% of the registration cost annually per participant.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

P & E Completed

23.05.09 Regular Council Meeting

102



May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.270 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council awards the Greenview Cemeteries Survey to Helix Engineering Ltd., in the amount of 
$48,972.41 plus GST, with funds to come from the Community Services, Professional Services for 
Cemeteries operational budget.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm.Serv Completed

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.271 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council direct Administration to award a contract for gravel crushing of 65,000 cubic metres 
at the Pinto South Gravel Pit (SML980119) to D. Ray Construction Ltd. in the amount of 
$837,200.00 plus GST, with funding to come from the 2023 Operations Road Maintenance Budget.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

I&E
In Progress

Contracts are signed

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.272 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF
That Council award the purchase of one new 2024 Freightliner 114SD Tandem Truck Chassis with 
Hook Lift Attachment to Western Star and Freightliner of Grande Prairie as quoted for 
$299,460.00, with
funds to come from Environmental Services 2023 Capital Budget. Price may be subject to change if 
the pricing is adjusted for the 2024 production year which is not set yet.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, 
Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
AGAINST: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

I&E
In Progress
Letter sent

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.273 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council approves the purchase of one (1) Spartan ER Wet-Rescue Fire Truck from Safetek 
Profire for a cost of $1,199,508.28, plus GST with funds to come from the Protective Services, PS 
23001.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm.Serv Completed

103



May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.277 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council approve the purchase of ten (10) ± acres of Land for the Ridgevalley Lagoon for 
$30,000.00 per acre, with funds to come from the 2023 Capital Budget, WW 21001. NW-14-71-26 
W5M
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry
AGAINST: Councillor Ratzlaff
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

I&E In Progress --- Waiting on landowner

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.231 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council approve the road construction request of approximately 830m to access NW 26-71-
21 W5 located on Range Road 212 north of Township Road 714 with funding to come from Capital 
Block funding.
FOR: Councillor Rosson, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
AGAINST: Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff
                                                                                                                      CARRIED

I&E In Progress -- Construction in 2024

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.234 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council award the Hamlet of Grande Cache Wastewater Treatment Facility Upgrades, 
Contract 6 – General Construction Contract to Alpha Construction Inc., in the amount of 
$43,577,000 plus GST, with funds to come from WW19002.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

I&E Complete

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.235 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council direct Administration to debenture fund project WW19002 Grande Cache Sewage 
Treatment Plant for an estimated value of $40,104,228.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                      CARRIED

Corp Serv In Progress

23.04.25 Regular Council Meeting

104



April 25, 2023

That Council award the New Grande Cache Sand and Salt Storage Structure to TDN Jenkins in the 
amount of $844,615.58 with funds to come from Capital Budget FM22008.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                             CARRIED

I&E Complete

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.242 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council direct Administration to tender electrical transfer switch for the Greenview Regional 
Multiplex and the Grovedale Community Centre with funds to come from the Capital Project 
Budget FM22009.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                        CARRIED

I&E In Progress

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.243 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council award the Grovedale Lagoon Decommissioning (WW17002) to Wild West Dirt Works 
Ltd., in the amount of $1,371,130.00 plus GST, with funds to come from the Approved 2023 
Capital Budget.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                          CARRIED

I&E Complete

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.244 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council award the Township Road 704 Engineering to WSP, in the amount of $44,809.00 plus 
GST, with funds to come from the 2023 approved Capital Budget (PV23004).
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                          CARRIED

I&E Complete

105



April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.245 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That Council direct Administration to award D. Ray Construction Ltd. a gravel crushing contract at 
the River Top Sand & Gravel Pit in the amount of $480,920.00 plus GST with funding to come from 
the 2023 Operations’ Road Maintenance Budget.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                        CARRIED

I&E
In Progress

Contracts are signed

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.246 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council award the Turn-Key Haul and Store Jug Fill Station to Flowpoint Environmental 
Systems Inc, in the amount of $148,475.97 plus GST, with funds to come from the 2023 Capital 
Budget (WD23006).
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                            CARRIED

I&E In progress

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.255 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council direct Administration to investigate the potential of implementing a Small Business 
sub-class tax for the purpose of supporting small businesses within Greenview for the 2024 tax 
year.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Dale Smith
                                                                                                            CARRIED

Corp Serv In progress

April 11, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.221 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council direct Administration to do an in-house high-level feasibility study on costs for adding 
water and possibly sewer to the Grovedale Winters Industrial Park for the last Council meeting of 
June 2023.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Berry
AGAINST: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                              CARRIED

I & E Complete

23.04.11 Regular Council Meeting

106



March 14, 2023

MOTION: 23.03.138 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council accept the report on Large Animal Veterinary Practice Supports for information, as 
presented.

FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
 
                                                                                                                         CARRIED

MOTION: 23.03.139 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council direct Administration to draft a program for Council consideration based on the 
Livestock Veterinary Innovation Initiative with options detailing a potential Greenview only 
initiative as well as a Peace Region based initiative.

FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
 
                                                                                                                         CARRIED

Ag. Serv In progress

23.03.14 Regular Council Meeting

23.02.28 Regular Council Meeting

23.03.28 Regular Council Meeting

107



February 28, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.99 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council authorize Administration to repair the BBQ at a cost of $9,000.00, and have it 
inspected by a gas fitter with funds to come from the Ag Rental Equipment Program.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

MOTION: 23.02.100 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council authorize Administration to retain the BBQ in the rental fleet and establish a damage 
deposit of $200.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

Comm. Serv Complete

February 28, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.103 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF
That Council direct Administration to investigate the necessity and feasibility of having backup 
power supply to all of the MD Emergency Reception Centres.  
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

Comm. Serv In Progress

February 28, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.118 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council direct Administration to engage Alberta Transportation to find a solution for the 
failing bridge on Highway 747 near Sweathouse and the deteriorating portions of Highway 666 
near Landry Heights.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

I&P/CAO
Bridge repair is scheduled for 2023, 

Hwy 666 on-going discussions

February 28, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.119 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY	
That Council direct Administration to provide an enhanced level of service on Range Road 200 
bridge hill near Sweathouse until June 1, 2023, due to extenuating circumstances caused by the 
Highway 747 bridge restricted use.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

I&E Complete

108



February 28, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.120 Moved by: REEVE TYLER OLSEN	
That Council direct Administration to work on a Conference and Education attendance policy for 
Council.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

Leg. Services
In Progress

Going to PRC June 14

February 14, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.62 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council direct Administration to support Heart River Housing with funding up to $10,000,000 
for construction on their Falher project through development of a loan guarantee bylaw.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

Corp. Serv/Leg
In Progress

review of draft

January 24, 2023

MOTION: 23.01.46 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council direct Administration to explore opportunities of grant funding and partnerships for 
the establishment of communication towers on highway 40 from Grande Cache Area to Grande 
Prairie utilizing fibre connection.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                       CARRIED

Corp. Serv. In Progress

January 24, 2023

MOTION: 23.01.51 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council direct Administration to prepare a report regarding the overall response effectiveness 
to a pipeline emergency that occurred on January 18, 2023.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton
ABSENT: Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                       CARRIED

Comm. Serv In Progress

23.02.21 COTW Meeting
23.02.14 Regular Council Meeting

23.01.24 Regular Council Meeting

109



January 17, 2023

MOTION: 23.01.08 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Committee of the Whole recommend that Council direct Administration to produce a 
Greenview Community Hall and Arena Assessment report prioritizing identified items and 
expectations on how they are to be completed, with timelines and through collaboration with 
each board.
CARRIED

Com. Serv/CAO In Progess

January 10, 2023

MOTION: 23.01.09 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council direct Administration to sign the updated Heart River Housing Letter of 
Understanding regarding financing dated December 15, 2022, as provided by Heart River Housing.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                  CARRIED

MOTION: 23.01.10 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council direct Administration to investigate assisting Heart River Housing with the debt 
financing of the capital projects presented and report back with the possible options.  
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                  CARRIED

Comm. Serv/Corp. Serv
Letter signed and sent - Second 

Motion - In Progress

January 10, 2023

MOTION: 23.01.16 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF	
That Council direct Administration to suspend the 2023 road re-gravelling program where deemed 
appropriate, excluding the Forestry Trunk Road.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
AGAINST: Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton
ABSENT: Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                  CARRIED

I & E Complete

23.01.10 Regular Council Meeting

22.12.20 COTW

22.12.13 RCM
22.11.22 RCM

110



November 22, 2022

MOTION: 22.11.737 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council support moving forward in principle with joint use of the Greenview Regional 
Multiplex by the New K-12 school pending a mutually beneficial joint use agreement with the 
Northern Gateways Public School Division.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, 
Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith
AGAINST: Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                     CARRIED

Ec. Dev & Planning
In Progress - In Camera item for July 

RCM

November 22, 2022

MOTION: 22.11.738 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council direct Administration to host a public engagement as soon as possible for the 
purpose of gathering information regarding the potential joint use agreement between the 
Municipal District of Greenview and Northern Gateway School Division regarding the Greenview 
Regional Multiplex.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Schlief, 
Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, Deputy 
Reeve Bill Smith
                                                                                                                     CARRIED

Ec. Dev & Planning
In Progress - Public Enagement to 

occurr once funding details are 
provided. 

October 25, 2022

MOTION: 22.10.693 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council approves 110 Street, between Hoppe Ave and 98 Avenue in Grande Cache Alberta be 
renamed to “Beland Blvd”.
                                                                                                     DEFERRED

MOTION: 22.10.694 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council defer motion 7.5 Grande Cache Street Renaming until a new policy on street naming 
can be brought back to Council.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor, Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

Leg. Serv 
In Progress

PRC deffered to another meeting

22.10.25 RCM

111



October 25, 2022

MOTION: 22.10.698 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council direct Administration to proceed with construction of a Small Reservoir Water Point 
System that requires a water reservoir that is filled with potable water (delivered by truck) with a 
circulating pump, in the subdivision of Nose Creek within Greenview.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry
AGAINST: Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Rosson
                                                                                                             CARRIED

I & E Complete

October 25, 2022

MOTION: 22.10.704 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council approves a formal acknowledgement of the relationship between the MD of 
Greenview No. 16 and the Western Cree Tribal Council.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

CAO/Comms In Progress

October 11, 2022

MOTION: 22.09.578 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council direct Administration to review licensing Bylaw 00-324 and include a provision for 
hawkers and peddlers for the purpose of Council discussion and further direction.

For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                           CARRIED

Ec Dev Planning In Progress -COTW July 

October 11, 2022

MOTION: 22.10.574 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council direct Administration to provide a report on the options to purchase Crown land off 
Memorial Drive in Grande Cache, Ab, Role Number 7200.

For: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Didow
Against: Reeve Olsen
                                                                                                                           CARRIED

Ec Dev Planning
In Progress - pending completion of 

report on commerical land assessment 
within Grande Cache

22 09.20 C.O.T.W.
22 09.27 RCM 
22 09.27 RCM 

22.10.11 RCM

112



september 13,2022

MOTION: 22.09.519 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council direct Administration to provide a report regarding the Grande Cache Community Bus 
for the purpose of understanding when it will be replaced, and the associated funds dedicated to 
its replacement.

For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow.
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith
                                                                                                                          CARRIED

Comm. Serv in progress

July 12, 2022

MOTION: 22.07.417 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That Council direct Administration to enter into an agreement with the Mountain Metis Nation 
Association regarding the sale of Block 9722089, Lot 34, Plan 14, within the Hamlet of Grande 
Cache, for the future development of a Mountain Metis Cultural Centre.

For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                        CARRIED

MOTION: 22.07.418 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council direct Administration to tender the proposed reconstruction of roadway including 
underground utilities from 94 Avenue and 97 street intersection, east to Memorial Drive in the 
Hamlet of Grande Cache.

For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                        CARRIED

Ec. Dev & Plan
In Progress - transfer being reviewed 

by Legal

July 12, 2022
22 07.12 RCM

22 07.26 RCM
22 07.19 C.O.T.W.

22 06.28 RCM

113



June 21, 2022

MOTION: 22.06.71 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to direct Administration to explore a weed 
control collaboration with key stakeholders within the Willmore Wilderness and Improvement 
District No. 25.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                      CARRIED
Absent: Councillor Burton

Comm. Serv

In progress Administration has a 
meeting booked with the Alberta 

Forestry, Parks and Tourism 
representatives for an 

intergovernmental working group 
discussion regarding control f weed 
infestations in the Willmore Area of 

December 14th.

April 26,2022

MOTION: 22.04.223 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council direct Administration to call a meeting with the Town of Valleyview and Greenview 
Intermunicipal Collaboration Framework Committee.

For: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Tom Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Didow.

                                                                                                                       CARRIED

CAO In Progress

March 22, 2022

MOTION: 22.03.157 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That Council direct administration to investigate commercial land opportunities in Grande Cache 
for the purpose of Economic Development.
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                     CARRIED

Planning & Ec. Dev.
In Progress - Planning to bring to RCM 

in the beginning of May.

22 03 08 RCM
22 02 22 RCM

Waiting  for disposition to have CNRL removed
22.05.10 RCM
22 04 26 RCM

22.06.21  C.O.T.W.

22 03 22 RCM

22 04 19 COTW

114



January 11, 2022

MOTION: 22.01.23  Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council direct Administration to re-establish the water well and equipment that existed previously 
at PT-10-57-5 W6M Muskeg Seepee Cooperative, with funds to come from the 2022 Capital budget.
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, 
Councillor Smith, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Scott, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Schlief
                                                                                                                    CARRIED

I&E

In Progress, 3 wells drilled to date,all 
dry, waiting for Co-op to assist with 

further direction, if not received soon,  
will drill final well at previous capped 

location

January 11, 2022

MOTION: 22.01.26 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
MOTION: That Council approve the land purchase of 1,943.28 acres, all located within Township 67, 
Range 5, W6M and includes lands within N ½ Section 10, NW ¼ Section 11, S ½ Section 14, all Section 
15, E ½ Section 16, E ½ Section 21, all Section 22, W ½ Section 23, W ½ Section 27, SW ¼ Section 34, for 
the Greenview Industrial Gateway project as per the appraised assessment value per acre established 
by the Government of Alberta, with an upset limit of $3,000,000.00, with funds to come from the 
Economic Development Reserve.
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, 
Councillor Smith, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Scott, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Schlief
                                                                                                                    CARRIED

CAO Serv. Complete - land title is officially done

21 08 24 RCM 

21 09 14 RCM 
21 09 21 COTW

21 10 12 RCM 

21 09 28 RCM 

21 10 26 RCM 

22 01 11 RCM

22 02 08 RCM
22 02 15 COTW

22 01 25 RCM

21 12 21 COTW 
21 12 14 RCM 

21 11 09 RCM 

115



August 24, 2021

MOTION: 21.08.427 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE GERVAIS
That Administration bring back a report on the legal ownership regarding properties in which municipal 
assets exist where the municipality does not own the land.
                    
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Urness, Councillor Olsen, Councillor Acton, 
Reeve Dale Smith, Councillor Chapman, Councillor Gervais, Councillor Burton, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith
                                                                                     
                                                                                                               CARRIED

Corp. Serv. 
In progress - part of the AM project and 

Insurance/Contract Review

June 8, 2021

MOTION: 21.06.298 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE GERVAIS	
That Council direct Administration to discontinue the use of the Greenview Regional Multiplex Logo for 
external and internal advertising and promotion, and have it replaced with the MD of Greenview 
Corporate Logo.
                                                                                                                 CARRIED

CAO Serv. In Progress - logo only exists on the 
building at this point.

April 13, 2021

MOTION: 21.04.196 Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS	
That Council direct Administration to research the concept of polling the rural and small urban 
municipalities in British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan and Manitoba to form an association as 
a federal voice similar to FCM.

For: UNAMINOUS 
Opposed: 

                                                                                                                    CARRIED

CAO Services
In Progress - waiting for Council to 

attend FCM to make informed decision.

March 23, 2021

MOTION: 21.03.148 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME	
That Council direct Administration to contact the City of Grande Prairie and the County of Grande 
Prairie to come up with a funding agreement in regards to Nitehawk Year Round Adventure Park.  
                                                                                                                  CARRIED

Community Services

Dec 2022 - Letter has been sent to 
County and City of GP -  In Progess -  

Nitehawk AGM in July, Administration 
will provide a report after this 

meeting. 

20 12 14 RC Meeting
20 11 09 RC Meeting

21 07 28 Special CM 

21 04 13 RC Meeting

21 02 23 RC Meeting
21 02 09 RC Meeting

21 05 25 RCM

21 03 24 RC Meeting

21 03 09 RC Meeting

116


	23.06.20 COTW minute
	4.1 a. Art Gallery of GP RFD
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	4.1 b. 2023 AGGP Presentation to MD of Greenview (1)
	5.1 a. RFD Business Licensing
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	5.1 b. Business Licensing Bylaw Revisions Overview
	5.2 Policy Presenation
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	5.3 a. RFD Schedule of Fees discussion
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	5.3 b. 22-930_Schedule of Fees_Active_Repeals 22-900 and 22-915
	Bylaw 22-930 Schedule of Fees
	AGRICULTURAL SERVICES – Schedule A
	**All Agricultural Rental Equipment can be kept for a maximum of three (3) days if there is a lineup waiting for that item
	FAMILY AND COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES – Schedule B
	COMMUNITY SERVICES GENERAL – Schedule C
	RECREATION – Schedule D
	PROTECTIVE/ENFORCEMENT SERVICES – Schedule E
	FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION – Schedule F
	An interest charge of 1.5% per month shall be imposed on unpaid accounts receivable, excluding water and sewer public utility accounts and property tax accounts.
	INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENGINEERING GENERAL – Schedule G
	ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES – Schedule H
	OPERATIONS – Schedule I
	PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT – SCHEDULE J
	Economic Development – Schedule K


	5.4 a. 23.04.11 COTW a Twp Rd 702 Oxbow Discussion--RA
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	5.4 b. Township Road 702 - Oxbow
	5.4 c. Attachment 1 - Historical aerial photographs
	5.5 a. RFD - Construction & Engineering Business Review 2023 LK
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	5.6 a RFD - Facility Maintenance Business Review 2023
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	ACTION LIST
	CAO Log




